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TOWN OF
BRECKENRIDGE

Town Council Work Session
Tuesday, September 27, 2022, 3:00 PM
Town Hall Council Chambers
150 Ski Hill Road
Breckenridge, Colorado

THE TOWN OF BRECKENRIDGE IS HOLDING HYBRID MEETINGS. THIS MEETING
WILL BE HELD IN PERSON AT BRECKENRIDGE TOWN HALL. ALL MEMBERS OF
THE PUBLIC ARE INVITED TO ATTEND. IN PERSON ATTENDEES MUST NOT
ACCESS THE VIRTUAL MEETING WHILE IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS.

This meeting will also be broadcast live over Zoom. Log-in information is available in the
calendar section of our website: www.townotbreckenridge.com. All public comments must be
delivered in person in Council Chambers during designated public comment times, by email
to mayor@townofbreckenridge.com, or by mailed letter, prior to the meeting.

I.

II.

I11.

IV.

VI.

GOOSE PASTURE TARN SITE VISIT (3:00-4:00pm)

PLANNING COMMISSION DECISIONS (4:00-4:05pm)

Planning Commission Decisions

LEGISLATIVE REVIEW (4:05-4:30pm)
FAMLI Ordinance (Second Reading)

Policy 4R / Mass Bonus (First Reading)

Loge IGA (Resolution)

Entrada Annexation Petition Sufficiency (Resolution)

MANAGERS REPORT (4:30-5:00pm)
Public Projects Update

Mobility Update

Sustainability Plan Update

Housing and Childcare Update

Committee Reports

Financials

PLANNING MATTERS (5:00-5:30pm)
Subdivision Code Amendment

EXECUTIVE SESSION (5:30pm)
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TOWN OF
Memo BRECKENRIDGE
To: Breckenridge Town Council Members
From: Mark Truckey, Director of Community Development
Date: September 21, 2022
Subject: Planning Commission Decisions of the September 20, 2022 Meeting

DECISIONS FROM THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING, September 20, 2022:
CLASS A APPLICATIONS: None.
CLASS B APPLICATIONS: None.

CLASS C APPLICATIONS:

1. 301 N. Main Street Change of Use, 301 N. Main Street, PL-2022-0425

A proposal to convert 272 sqg. ft. of the Watson House from office to restaurant use, and convert the
McMenamy House from retail use to a beer taproom. The proposal includes a deviation from the
employee housing mitigation rates specified by Policy 24 (Absolute) Social Community. Called up and
approved.

2. Long Residence Solar, 213 S. French Street, PL-2022-0391

A proposal to install a flush-mounted solar array on the non-primary elevations of a non-historic
residence. Approved.

TOWN PROJECT HEARINGS: None.

OTHER: None.
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PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING

The meeting was called to order at 5:30pm by Chair Delahoz.

ROLL CALL
Mike Giller - absent  Mark Leas George Swintz Allen Frechter - absent
Tanya Delahoz Ethan Guerra Steve Gerard

APPROVAL OF MINUTES
With no changes, the September 6, 2022 Planning Commission Minutes were approved.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA
With the below changes, the September 20, 2022 Planning Commission Agenda was approved:

A discussion to recap the September 15 Planning Commission Field trip to Leadville and Buena Vista
was added prior to the Materials Policy 5R work session.

PUBLIC COMMENT ON HISTORIC PRESERVATION ISSUES:
e No public comments.

CONSENT CALENDAR:
1. 301 N. Main Street Change of Use (MT), 301 N. Main Street, PL-2022-0425

Mr. Gerard made a motion to call up the 301 N. Main Street Change of Use, seconded by Mr. Swintz.
The motion passed 5 to 0 and the project was called up.

Commissioner Questions / Comments:

Mr. Truckey: | just wanted to give an update. At the June 21 meeting the applicant was able to
demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Planning Commission that the proposed Tap
House use was not going to require the number of employees that our employee
housing mitigation formula would require in policy 24A for a “restaurant use”. The
reason for that was because the Tap House operates differently, at least in this situation,
than a restaurant where you got full food service. So it's much more bare bones in terms
of the employees needed for pouring beer. The Commission supported that as well as
you thought that expanding Pho Real into 270 additional square feet of office space in
the adjacent Watson House for the Pho Real was not going to change the number of
employees required. What was outstanding after that meeting was coming back with
language that would condition this approval. The Planning Commission was concerned
about that in terms of ensuring that in the future this employee count is not exceeded.
Businesses can morph over time and if it became full food service, how would we
address that? So we have addressed that in the conditions of approval. The staff report
documents what the employee mitigation requirements would have been and then
backs that down to essentially what the Planning Commission agreed to. At the
meeting, regarding the McMenamy House, where the Tap House is proposed, we heard
from the applicant is that they would need only three employees, the equivalent of three
FTEs. However, the existing use, the retail use, has a employee generation of up to 3.5
employees. So that's what's included in here because 3.5 employees is what they are
already allowed to have in that space. If they were to change the use to something more
employee-intensive than that one, the employee count could change. The condition
recognizes the 15.2 employees at the Watson House and 3.5 at the McMenamy House.
The property owner has to submit annual reports that outlines the number of employees
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Mr. Gerard:

Mr. Swintz:

in both businesses and the Town has the ability to audit that. Annual reports need to be
prepared to the satisfaction of the Town. We have the ability to audit the business and
ask for additional documentation if we need it. We have remedies if we find some
inconsistencies there. Staff is recommending approval of the change of use, with
conditions, as it carries through everything that was discussed previously with the
Commission. We also addressed the water plant investment fees along with parking
fees in the conditions. Ed Bello, the owner will be on the hook for paying for those
fees. So anyway, I'd be glad to answer any questions, but | just wanted to point out to
you the findings and conditions that have addressed these issues.

Mark, the applicant is on board for all of the conditions that the department is
requesting? (Mr. Truckey: Correct.) (Mr. Ed Bello, Applicant: Yes.)

I had a couple things just for me to understand. It is a change of use, so it is running
with the land, not with the business? Or is it the other way around? (Mr. Truckey: Well,
this is specific to these businesses in terms of the changes in the intensity of use. If the
use intensity changed, we'd be back having this discussion again.) Okay. And are they
bifurcated by structure, so if one is not in compliant and the other one is that you're
only dealing with this one that's uncompliant? (Mr. Truckey: Yeah, we tried to do that
on purpose. We had talked with the applicant about just having a pool of employees
that are available for all these buildings, but staff did not support that because that is
going to create a whole another series of headaches for us in terms of monitoring and
enforcement. Think of La Cima Mall, for example, which is all under one ownership, if
we had that kind of model. So we definitely wanted to keep the requirements per
business.)

Mr. Bob Gregory, Attorney for Applicant;

I think the way that | would answer the question is it is specific to the buildings themselves because we
are talking about the Watson House and the McMenamy House, as Mark put in his report. The Watson
House basically has 15.2 employees that it is allowed under policy 24A and then the McMenamy House
has 3.5 employees allowed under 24A. The business that operates within those structures doesn’t
necessarily matter. | mean, obviously, the businesses may change hands , not the use changes. So if
somebody came in and operated a different tap house in the McMenamy House, there is no change in the
use under those circumstances. It is really the change of use is what triggers it, whether or not there’s a
different business in that structure. Am I right, Mark. (Mr. Truckey: Correct.)

Mr. Gerard:

Mr. Gregory:

Mr. Swintz:

And also, Bob, what would result if the tap house decided to become a full service
restaurant in addition to a tap house?

I think we have alleviated the Town’s concerns in that regard. Obviously there are a
whole host of things that would have to happen in order for a tap house to become a
restaurant. And if anybody is actually familiar with McMenamy house, if you walked
in there, it's a pretty bare bones building right now. Pretty old bare bones building,
there is no kitchen in there. | mean, you would have to install a full kitchen. So there's a
number of permits that have to be applied for and it would be obvious if the use is
going to be changing from you know a tap house where beers are being poured to a
facility where foods being prepared and that's why if you see in the conditions of
approval, we did include in there that no food can be prepared in the McMenamy
House. It can be sold. If it's prepared, somebody else is preparing it somewhere else.
The real labor intensive process is obviously if you're preparing and serving food in the
facility it's going to trigger that the use has changed under those circumstances.

My last question, is the math on the 3.5 employees based on a 40 hour week. That
means that they can have three employees working 40 hours and then one employee
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working 20 hours and you're going to bifurcate. (Mr. Truckey: Yes, or they could have
seven employees working 20 hours, however.) Yes, Okay.

Mr. Gregory: Obviously those of you that are familiar with the labor force in Breckenridge, lots of
people have two or three or four jobs and so we wanted to make sure that somehow, the
way that employees were being counted captured that reality.

PUBLIC COMMENT:
No public comment.

Commissioner Questions / Comments:

Mr. Swintz: I think Staff did a good job. | would recommend approval.

Mr. Gerard: It was a really interesting issue. | think, fortunately, most of us had some idea of the
reality of both of these businesses and how they operated, and it kind of pointed out the
problems with a one size fits all policy when you drill it down to the actual efforts on
the ground. So I think it is an excellent resolution. We have a way for these businesses
to do what they wanted to do and keep it that way unless they change, so | support the

application.

Mr. Leas: | appreciate staff working hard with the businesses to work out all the details and seems
like you listened to everything we said.

Mr. Guerra: I echo all of that. I read thought it four times today. I think you did a great job on it.
Thank you.

Ms. Delahoz: I'm on the same page as everybody else. | think we worked hard on this issue. |

appreciate the Town's commitment to doing this study next year on what businesses
generate in terms of the employees so we have our own factual data that is relevant to
our community. | appreciate that.

Mr. Gerard made a motion to approve the 301 N. Main Street Change of Use with the attached findings
and conditions, seconded by Mr. Swintz. The motion passed 5 to 0 and the project was approved.

2. Long Residence Solar (SS), 213 S. French Street, PL-2022-0391
The Long Residence Solar Consent Calendar item was approved as presented without call-up.

OTHER MATTERS:
1. Planning Commission Retreat Overview

Mr. Kulick: We wanted to have an informal conversation about the observations or thoughts on the
field trip. From staff perspective we thought was it went really well and that was really
informative going to the modular facility and seeing the construction process for the
modular component. And then actually going across the street and seeing how it's
actually implemented in the field at the Farm development and the Railyard
development. We would be happy to discuss ay observations that we have from there.
You know also with in mind that we are to be talking about materials after this. If you
have any observations about the materials that you saw in any of the projects that are
good or bad, feel free to bring them up.

Mr. Swintz: I wasn't able to attend, so I'd like to hear from my fellow Commissioners what they
thought of the composite wood siding that you saw.
Mr. Guerra: It was especially interesting and informative going to the factory. My comment, | was

disappointed in the siding that we saw over at the Farm. The stuff coming out of the
factory looked well built. Thinking about it since, | have concerns about what that
siding is going to look like on the project that we have coming up.
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Mr. Leas:

Mr. Guerra:

Mr. Leas:

Ms. Delahoz:

Mr. Leas:
Mr. Guerra:

Mr. Leas:

Mr. Guerra:
Ms. Puester:

Mr. Truckey:

Ms. Delahoz:

I think that project is going to be delivered naked, so it is going to be sided here so the
Town will have some input about what is applied.

| was not aware of that. Thank you, Mark. That makes me feel a little bit better about
that project. | did hear subsequently, and these are rumors, people who have been
looking into the outfit, Fading West, are having some issues with keeping things
square, doors and windows operating great. Did anyone notice if they were building
those walls to jigs? To keep them square and straight.

I didn’t see that. I would think that they would, but I don’t know because that was
going on in that attic portion of the factory.

I am not a builder so I don’t know how that all works, but if you are stacking those
containers like LEGO blocks, are you able to tweak those doors and windows after?

It is difficult to correct.

Once they’re built, you are pretty much stuck with that, | would think. And what | was
talking about is when you're building walls like that in a production line, if you have a
jig that hold every board in a predetermined space. | didn’t look at that, to see if they
were building free-hand or with a jig.

I was very impressed with the factory. It was state-of-the-art. And I think they're doing
a very good job. They're using good material. And my impression was that they're
competently building a good box. | did a modular home as my first spec home in 1994,
and the reason | chose a modular manufacturer is that | had been in the manufacturing
business for 18 years before that and the people that | had were finish carpenters, | did
not have a carpentry subcontract crew. So I tried this and my experience at that point in
time and things have changed a lot in that period of time. | saved money on what |
bought, but I spent so much money tweaking those kinds of things and making things
right because the boxes have to stack right, got to be even, because if you don’t get
them even the front of the house will have a bump in the siding. So if you're 1/2 inch
off in the depth of one module, you're going to see that when you go to the back of the
house if they line up in the front. So | just did that one time and moved on from that to
do a panelized type of construction. Breckenridge has high hopes of saving a lot of
money. And | think that that they may find by the time that it's all done, it isn't going to
be the panacea it is perceived today. I'm optimistic, but apprehensive.

That is the message that | would echo.

I am just going to add because we brought up the Justice Center materials. Just pulling
what was approved, on those boxes is fiber cement board with a natural stone veneer
base, and fiber cement vertical accent siding and trim. So it is all fiber cement and
stone. The roof is standing seam metal. To be applied after the boxes arrive.

What | was going to add, just to your point, Mark is everyone at the Town and the
County recognizes those potential issues. But there has been so much talk for so many
years about trying a modular project. We almost started one previously and then we
abandoned it because pricing came back different. | don't think that's ever going to be
resolved until we actually go through with a project and hopefully there are not painful
lessons to learn. The price is attractive and so that's obviously why we're doing it and
you may be right, at the end of the day maybe we don't save much, but | think this is
kind of looked at as something we have to explore, given that the cost of new
construction.

The factory was fascinating; it was just so cool to be there and experience it and walk
through it. Fading West has a really amazing vision and mission. I don’t have the
building experience that other Commissioners have. My thoughts with the Railyard
initially was, | had concerns with that siding, and maybe it was the application, but it
looked like there was pretty big gaps in between where those siding pieces met, and we
kept seeing that reflective flashing behind it. Maybe it wasn't finished, | don't know, but
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Mr.

Mr.

Mr.

Ms.
Mr.

Mr.

Mr.

Ms.

Mr.

Mr.
Mr.

Mr.

Guerra:

Leas:

Guerra:

Delahoz:

Guerra:

Kulick:

Leas:

Delahoz:

Leas:

Guerra:
Leas:

Guerra:

that was didn't look fabulous to me. And then when we were over at the Farm, we saw
some of that as well. It looked like their application was a little bit better. Or
installation of that siding was a bit better, but we still saw a lot of that reflective
flashing behind and I just don't think that that's something that we really want here. If
we can paint that, that would be great. | don't know maybe half inch, three quarter inch
reflective material (Mr. Leas; It's aluminum flashing.) all across it from where those
aluminum pieces fit and it just didn't look good. Some of the interior material choices
felt low-cost; our boxes will have different finishes. But overall, | mean the factory was
amazing.

With the bathroom finishing. | agree with you. You could upgrade some of those. They
could get the z-flashing in a different color.

And a lot of times the siding will go on with the flashing and they'll spray the entire
thing and you won't notice it because it's sprayed the same color as the siding.

Paint could peel off of that galvanized flashing. And we saw some of that, Stefi and |
saw an application that had been painted but was already peeling.

How do we prevent that then?

You make sure that they use a paint, that is anodized or factory powder coated, and
then it won’t peel.

I think to your point, if someone chose to go down the road of the Diamond Kote, or
similar product, we would treat it like we do with any of our other penetrations. We
would require any bare metal to be painted to match. When we do our inspections; any
of the vents, conduit, etc. We would require all of that to be painted.

For you Steve and George. The other part of this that was really pretty exciting from
my standpoint was the Railyard. And we met there with the developer, who | found to
be a very interesting guy. This guy decided to put down a million and a half dollars on
a piece of very questionable property in Leadville that Tonya had told us had been
basically condemned.

It was a Superfund site because of the mining materials. But the east side of Leadville
is ridden with mine shafts and tunnels and is fairly unstable. The Colorado Department
of Mining Safety and Reclamation had made a recommendation that the lot not be built
on. They've had some challenges with that. That's just some back story that I'm aware
of just from my ties to the Leadville community. But he said that in cleaning up the
land he removed about 150,000 tons of contaminated soils.

150,000 tons of contaminated materials that they had to excavate and transport just to
get started.

And that was after they dropped the Superfund site designation.

He's really got a neat plan there and they've got a lot of mixed-use going on. They've
got townhouses. They've got single families, apartments, commercial down on the
street. He's trying to get another grocery store in there. A lot of stuff going on that
really benefits that community. So it was just very interesting to talk to him and to try
to pick his brains about the insight and the motivation of what he's doing from the
standpoint of affordable housing. Here's one guy in one community who was doing
this, and he had some interesting insights. He said that garages were much more
efficient, with an alley in the back rather than curb cuts and attached to the house. He
made a big point about their drainage and they had what is called an inverted crown
where the water instead of going to the two sides and draining down the two side goes
to the middle and then drains down. He's got half as much pipe to put in and he was
bragging that during the rain storm that was a month or so ago here that they got they
performed better than anybody else in the town in terms of drainage.

The other interesting thing about affordable housing at the Farm. Buena Vista did not
put any deed restrictions on those and they had immediate flips within a year. People
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Gerard:

Guerra:

Leas:

Kulick:

Guerra:

Leas:

Guerra:
Crump:

Kulick:

Delahoz:

Leas:

Swintz:

Leas:

were making $100,000 in a year and bringing the prices up and are they still
affordable? So | thought that was pretty interesting. We're not doing that here,
obviously.

Even having started your comments with the siding that they're putting on in the field
over there and relating back to the first session we had on non-natural materials and we
all passed around the particle board and that kind of stuff. Does that change any of the
thoughts you had about how we should approach the use of that kind of material here in
Breck?

That's a good representation of the houses that | thought that the siding was pretty
substandard. It was two things. Whatever that composite material was, the process of
which they put that that the paint on was a very heavy enamel and very shiny and very
plastic looking. It looked way too glossy for external application. And we also noticed
there were a lot of gaps around the caulk lines that were going to be bigger than |
would accept, at the window frames and corner trim. So, those are some of the things
that I noticed.

Did you notice the piece of plastic that they put on the butt joints? Whereas with the
Hardy you put a piece of building paper or tar paper behind the joint, they had a plastic
piece and that added to the inexpensive look.

For the people that weren’t there, particularly the photo on the screen it was much more
glossy and fake in appearance.

I think it was the choice of the materials that they used. If the composite is an
acceptable material or not there are going to be different grades of that. And | am sure,
the stuff that Sarah showed us, it would look good. The quality level of materials used
in this development were bottom end. And it showed in my opinion.

And the thing to remember is we’re walking through the factory, they are processing
many orders. These modular buildings have deciding on that that particular developer
or builder that's wanted, and that's not necessarily their choice or their standard, but it's
what we saw and all we can do is react to what we saw.

Right, I don’t think this would be approved here.

I did want to say that the Railyard development also used LP Smart Siding and it
wasn’t shiny. There were different levels of sheen throughout.

I think one of the things to note is the difference between the Railyard and Farm. Here
is the example in Leadville where they had other materials they had the metal
wainscoting and then they also had natural wood. At the Farm site in BV, the
combination of the glossy siding with the aluminum railings brought out the totality of
the non-natural materials. Having some natural product to offset it does make a
difference.

One House at the Railyard, we were walking around to the back road, to go into the
unit that was not finished. And it had horizontal siding and it was on the left hand side
and you could see the water marks. And that was concerning to me because that was
the higher quality material.

There are a couple ways that could happen that could have happened have happened
when they had the materials stacked before it was installed.

So | think it's appropriate that Chris brought this up before we go into the agenda item
but I'm still fishing for the aspect simply of durability. | don't care if it looks like plastic
or it's shiny, that's not what I'm trying to drive for. Because we had a conversation
before that we like Hardie board because we got some history with it. Then we were
worried about this stuff, you know, falling apart. So can you guys address that from the
field trip? Or do we not know that yet?

You need to keep both in balance. It's important that it looks good. It's important that
it's durable. You know if you really want something that's going to last for a long time
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Mr. Guerra:
Mr. Kulick:

Ms. Szrek:

Mr. Guerra:
Ms. Szrek:
Mr. Guerra:

Ms. Crump:

Mr. Leas:

Mr. Guerra:

Mr. Guerra:

Mr. Kulick:

then maybe you want plastic. But | don't think we want plastic here in Breckenridge, so
we need to really keep in balance those values and say, you know, where's the
compromise point here?

| can say that the plastic glossy look is going to repel water really well.

Policy 5R is a relative policy we are really deciding if it should receive points. Policy
5A does not address the actual materials but rather paint colors, and other specifics. We
do not have to make a decision on a no go or not. We have to make a decision should it
get negative points or not. But we're still recommending including composite wood as
receiving negative points in the matrix.

| had a really quick thing I wanted to throw in and ask maybe the experts at the table.
Natural wood, and how long it lasts? Obviously we like natural materials, | have done
some projects that are old historic woods that are totally warped siding. Can you spray
it with some kind of varnish that keeps it from weathering or does a natural wood just
weather quicker comparatively speaking to a composite material? That’s the question |
wanted to ask quickly.

There are all kinds of different strains to protect from weathering, etc.

But in my mind, it will not be as durable as a synthetic material.

Not as durable as a Hardie board. Which is almost indestructible.

Some natural woods are more durable than others, like teak or cedar are going to be
naturally more durable than soft or yellowwoods.

My response is going to be different than Ethan's because my experience is in a
different climate. Humidity and termites. You just don’t see here. So it's amazing to me
how durable some of these woods are in this element up here.

We put on siding untreated a lot. | can think of numerous projects in Town. You know,
an example is the Wyoming snow fence wood. You don’t put anything on it because it
changes the appearance. We are so dry here that we really don’t have issues with the
siding, unless it is installed improperly.

Siding deteriorates from the sun, if installed properly. If it's installed improperly where
water gets behind it or in a splash back that can rot. If installed properly, the weather
(not including the sun) would not be too much of an impact. | hesitate about
discounting something because of unknown durability.

I think we're really looking at the aesthetics in terms of how it relates to policy 5R.

WORK SESSIONS:
1. Policy 5R Architectural Compatibility/Building Materials Continued (SVC)
Ms. Crump reviewed a draft proposed materials matrix for a potential future code amendment. The
following specific question was asked of the Commission:
1. Does the Commission wish to recommend that Policy 5R Architectural Compatibility be amended
to include the proposed material matrix?

Commissioner Questions / Comments:

Mr. Swintz:

Mr. Kulick:

Sarah and | talked about this this afternoon. The brick section, Mid-century modern
style bricks should be more defined. And similarly the composite wood siding, does
that term need to be defined more.

I think since this is a relative policy. For the mid-century style brick, we probably
would need to have a description under points where like any amount of this style of
brick that we're not comfortable with this get maximum negative points because we
can't under 5R just completely prohibit it. And if we just discourage it, then it would
kind of trigger back to the section where we're already giving the points even for the
preferred brick. But we probably have to come back and maybe clarify that.

10
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Ms. Crump:

Mr. Leas:

Mr. Swintz:

Ms. Crump:

Mr. Kulick:

Mr. Swintz:

Mr. Guerra:
Ms. Crump:

Mr. Kulick:

Mr. Leas:

Mr. Kulick:

Mr. Gerard:

It was a previous Mike Giller comment that certain colors and styles of brick wouldn't
be appropriate for Breckenridge. So we wanted to make that clear in the matrix.

Colors of brick and then you've got brick sizes and a long narrow grid is something that
you would see in a mid-century modern style. | think that would be possible to narrow
down and define what is appropriate for use here in Breckenridge. The bricks that were
used were certain sizes for certain reasons during historical periods, and if you limit it
to those particular sizes and components.

Agreed. Second comment is in the allowance column for composite wood where you
used “discouraged.” To me, maybe that ought to be there is “no allowance.” There is
none. Maybe under notes, we say we discourage the use of it if in fact that's what we're
trying to communicate. So there is no allowance? It is not discouraged.

I don't think we can say “no allowance” because like Mr. Kulick was saying, it is a
relative policy, so we're not saying it's prohibited.

Correct. If you look at how our Policy 5 is laid out for materials, we don't have
anything that we outright prohibit. You could do a completely glass house, but you
would get negative six points under architectural compatibility. In terms of relative
importance over all in the Code, it's still going to be relative and that's where we use
“discouraged” in a relative policy and we would use “prohibited” under an absolute
policy.

Next to composite wood notes and exceptions if there aren't any, we should just say
none and fill in the columns. | wonder the conversation that I've just been listening to
that you all had about the composite wood, that under the notes for composite wood
that we do make comments in there about aesthetics that it shouldn't have a certain
sheen. I shouldn't look like plastic but that's what | was hearing is an aesthetic issue
there that might fit well under notes in the matrix. What are thoughts about that?

I would agree with that. And maybe that note it must have a natural appearance.

I don't know if we want to encourage the natural-look/faux composite wood. | don't
know if you noticed the samples that were being passed around previously but those are
perhaps some of them questionably fake faux looking ones. Do we have a policy about
matte versus gloss paint?

We don’t. We think it should still get negative points and I think that's where we heard
from the Planning Commission last time and probably taking the slow approach would
be we're not even trying to distinguish between the glossy or matte. We’re just kind of
discouraging it and waiting and seeing if there's to be a separation between different
products that maybe would rise up like fiber cement siding did over a decade where we
became more comfortable with it to the point where we don't award negative points
unless every aspect of the building is not natural.

Maybe we should address the sheen of the materials in the section of code that deals
with the Code that deals with the colors. It would be a blanket statement for all
materials. Needs to be low-sheen finish.

I mean within the historic district, it traditionally was a painted wood siding with a
sheen in a lot of cases. Outside the historic district, it's typically a stained appearance
with really minimal paint. So maybe we could make a distinction between the
conservation district and outside the conservation district.

Couple of things struck me as | was going through this. First of all, | agree with George
about the word discouraged in the allowance column. And | think that's a note. It's a
note that we kind of discourage it if that's what we want to say. And under the
allowance column, I think we can we can say. Not “not allowed”, but “no allowance.”
In other words, brick is allowed up to 25 percent. So that's a good comment. Composite
wood siding is not going to get a free allowance right? Because in the points it's zero to
50 percent. Any amount gets you negative points.

11



Town of Breckenridge Date 09/20/2022
Planning Commission Regular Meeting Page 9

Ms.
Mr.

Mr.

Mr.

Mr.

Ms.
Mr.

Mr.

Mr.

Mr.

Mr.

Mr.

Mr.

Ms.

Mr.
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Crump:
Gerard:

Kulick:

Gerard:

Truckey:

Crump:
Gerard:

Kulick:

Truckey:

Gerard:;

Kulick:

Swintz;

Truckey:

Crump:

Kulick:
Guerra:

Kulick:

If | read no allowance, | would think that meant prohibited.

If you then go across, you can see, well, | guess it's there's no allowance, but if I put up
to 50 percent, | get three negative points.

That column may not be necessary either. Because we have our point allocations where
it is already discouraging it at a certain threshold by giving it negative points.

I'd be OK with that column not being there cause in the in the written language it tells
you up here that brick is allowed.

You could take the 25 percent which it shows up under that column and move the notes
over to one of the other columns.

| think that's a better idea than saying “no allowance.”

Once you commit the sin of getting points, people tend to go to the maximum of those
points. So for example on brick; If they go to 26 percent, they're going to go to 50
percent because they've already taken the negative points and if they go to 51 and
they're getting negative six. They're going to go as high as they want to go, even all the
way. | don't know if that encourages people to do something bad. Or if it's just the way
it is and we see it with like heated driveways and that heated outdoor space. Where
they get so many square feet for so many points, and once they cross that line, they
tend to go as far as they can go.

Yeah, we did correct it after we saw the East Peak 8 Hotel which had almost an acre of
heated space and at the time only got negative three points with our revised code that
you guys worked on | think that would probably qualify for negative thirty 30 points
now. But I think in terms of materials again, we're trying to find balance. That's where
we see the really high point thresholds, or in the case of an environmental policy. But
in the case of kind of “beauty is in the eye of the beholder” it's probably at the lower
end of the spectrum where even getting to negative six points in a single family home
for maxing out your non-natural materials is quite a bit of points for them to overcome,
so maybe there's a way to have smaller increments in the beginning, but I don't think
we would recommend going above negative six. That's comparing it to other policies
that are probably more egregious in terms of negative impacts to the community.

The one thing you could consider is changing the multiplier. Currently it’s basically a
choice of negative three or negative six points. If you used a smaller multiplier like
two, then you could have negative two, four, or six points as options.

I think one of the place that it stands out to me is the metal siding. If going above 51
percent your maybe you're going to see a wall. It's all metal. If they wanted to do that.
Which would really be probably not architecturally compatible.

I think metal would be a good example of that. If an applicant realizes that it is six
negative points. Maybe they will ratchet it down to negative three points.

Question for staff, just kind of overarching. We're trying to perfect the paragraph above
with a matrix, but we're really not editing the paragraph above. Do we want to open up
that Pandora’s Box?

We're proposing to take that paragraph out. Or significantly reduce it so that we really
rely on the matrix.

It could be something where we take, for example, the sentence about brick and that
goes into the notes of the matrix. The proposal was to replace the paragraph.

I think the matrix will definitely simplify those pre app meetings for new applicants.
Couple of things on the fiber cement siding under notes. No negative points were
applied with natural materials such as natural wood accents or natural stone base. Very
vague. What are we looking for here? Are we looking for all the trim to be natural
wood if they are putting on fiber cement siding?

We actually talked about that quite a bit internally and we came back to putting it on
you guys to kind of make that interpretation.
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Ms. Puester: The more that you narrow what is possible in the materials matrix the more everything
is going to look similar.

Mr. Guerra: Must be a natural earth tone color. To me, a shiny siding is not a natural earth tone
color.

Ms. Crump: The earth tone phrase comes from the current code.

Ms. Gerard: Making the matrix is creating an objective criteria and we don’t want it to turn into a
block of everything looking the same. I think this is much more user-friendly approach.

Mr. Leas: I think the matrix brings clarity to what your metrics are. | agree with the comments to

tweak to make it sharper.
All Commissioners agree to the suggested edits and that a materials matrix is an appropriate approach.
2. Town Council Summary

ADJOURNMENT:
The meeting was adjourned at 6:55 pm.

Tanya Delahoz, Chair
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Memo BRECKENRIDGE
To: Breckenridge Town Council Members

From: Dana Laverdiere, Director Human Resources

Date: 9/20/2022

Subject: Second Reading of Council Bill, Paid Family and Medical Leave Insurance Act (FAMLI)

There are no changes from first reading of Council Bill regarding Paid Family and Medical Leave
Insurance Act (FAMLI), regarding a decision on whether the Town of Breckenridge should
participate in FAMLI, or opt out of FAMLI. As detailed in the attached Exhibit, the standard hearing
to be conducted during the regular meeting, will serve as the employee hearing required by the
FAMLI legislation. Employees have been natified of the hearing date and time.

Background

The State of Colorado Paid Family Medical Leave Insurance (FAMLI) program, approved by voters
in November 2020, provides employees up to 12 weeks of (partially) paid leave to take care of
themselves or a family member during life events like injury, serious illness, or pregnancy. An
additional four weeks of leave is allowed for pregnancy complications or childbirth complications.
Participating employers and employees will both contribute to premiums for FAMLI (50/50 split).
Employers are to start collecting and remitting premiums January 1, 2023, and benefits would be
available to employees starting January 1, 2024. The decision for local governments to opt-out
must occur in 2022.

Premiums are equal to .9% of each employee’s regular weekly wage. Half of the .9% (or
.45%) is to be paid by the employee, and the other half is to be paid by the employer. The
employer is responsible for collecting employee premiums via payroll deduction, and for remitting
all premiums to the State on a quarterly basis. Premiums would be mandatory for all full-time, part-
time, seasonal and temporary employees whether they ever utilize the benefit or not. Colorado
employees become eligible to take paid leave after they have earned at least $2,500 in wages
within the State, over a period of a year.

Past 2025, the premium rate will be set each year by the FAMLI Division Director, at the
Department of Labor and Employment, and is based on a formula based on the funds balance and
usage rates. The premium rate amount is statutorily capped at 1.2% of wages.

Benefits during a state approved FAMLI leave, will pay employees between 37% and 90% of their
wages, capped at $1,100 per week. Employees earning about $1,500 per week will receive
approximately 68% of their weekly wage, or $1,018 per week while on FAMLI. The chart below
demonstrates the benefit available to employees based on their weekly wage.
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Weekly Wage | Weekly Benefit | Maximum Annual Benefit | Percent of Weekly Wage
$500 $450 $5.400 90%
$1,000 $768 $9.216 7%
$1,500 1,018 $12.218 68%
$2,000 $1.100 $13.200 95%
$3,000 $1.100 $13.200 3T%

While all municipalities are included in FAMLI by default, a municipality may opt out and avoid the
employer and employee portion of premiums by a vote of a governing body. The municipality must
give prior notice of the vote in the same manner it notices other public business, must provide
special notice to employees, and must take testimony before voting. Declination by a municipality
allows employees to individually opt in to the FAMLI program at their same employee only cost if
they so desire. Employees may still individually opt-in to the program, and submit premiums to
have FAMLI coverage, at no increased cost.

State law requires participation in FAMLI unless the municipality’s governing body votes to opt out
of the program by December 31, 2022.

Financial Considerations:

The Town'’s financial burden in the first year of the FAMLI program of .45% of wages is expected to
be approximately $76,000. In addition, employees would bear the same equivalent financial
contribution of .45%. The program cost may increase up to 33% in 2025 to 1.2% of wages, split
between the employer and employee.

Benefit Comparisons

The Town currently provides FTYR employees with the following leave benefits at no cost to the

employee:

e Short term disability, at no cost to the employee. The Town’s short term disability plan
provides 60% to 70% of pay while on leave. FTYR employees are eligible after 90 days of
employment. Benefits are payable once all accrued paid leave benefits have been exhausted,
or after 30 days, whichever is later.

e Long term disability, at no cost to the employee. The Town’s long term disability plan
provides 60% of an employee’s earnings. Disability payments begin after a 90 day waiting
period of a covered disability.

e Sick Leave, at no cost to the employee. The Town also has a sick leave policy for FTYR
employees that accrues at 3.69 hour a pay period, and may be carried over year to year, with
a max balance of 480 hours, or the equivalent of 12 weeks fully paid with the use of sick leave.

e FMLA is provided leave for employees with job protection and time away from work in the
event of illness or injury to themselves or to attend to various needs relating to their families.
The Town’s FML is compliant with the Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993. Employees may
use sick, personal, comp and annual leave while on the Town'’s existing Family Medical Leave.
All TOB employees are eligible for this leave if they have worked for the Town for at least 12
months, and at least 1,250 hours over the past 12 months.

Benefits for Part time and Seasonal employees:

® Page 2
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e Paid Time Off (PTO) Bank for Part time and Seasonal Employees. PTO accrues at 1 hour
for every 30 hours worked. This leave policy complies with the Colorado Healthy Families and
Workplace Act which guarantees workers the right to earn paid sick time.

e FMLA All TOB employees are eligible for this leave if they have worked for the Town for at
least 12 months, and at least 1,250 hours over the past 12 months.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
The staff recommendation is to opt out of the state-run FAMLI program, and “Decline ALL
Participation”.

Opting out of the state-run FAMLI program would allow the Town to avoid having to pay costly
premiums to the State, save our employees from having to pay the state premiums (unless
individually desired), while still providing our employees with the protection of a paid leave program
to care for themselves or a family member in the event of a serious illness or injury. The FAMLI
program is a “social insurance” and would look similar to unemployment insurance, where the
employee would file a claim on their own with the State of Colorado for payment. The State of
Colorado pays the employee (the claimant) a portion of their weekly wages directly through a debit
card or direct deposit. With the plans the Town has in place, Human Resources is able to monitor
and assist employees with short term disability, long term disability, and sick leave.

If an employee desires participation in FAMLI, the option exists to opt-in to the program as an
individual participant.

The State website is: https://famli.colorado.gov/

Included in the packet, is a Council Bill for second reading. Staff will be available to answer any
guestions.

® Page 3
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COUNCIL BILL NO.
Series 2022

AN ORDINANCE DECLINING PARTICIPATION IN THE COLORADO PAID

FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE INSURANCE PROGRAM.

WHEREAS, the Town of Breckenridge provides more generous benefits than required
by Colorado Healthy Families and Workplaces set forth in C.R.S. § 8-13.3-401 et seq., the
differences between the state and Town benefits are more fully described in the attached
Exhibit A; and,

WHEREAS, state law, C.R.S. § 8-13.3-52, provides that a local government may decline

participation in the FAMLI program by an affirmative vote of the governing body; and,

WHEREAS, the Town has given all Town Employees 30 days advance written notice
that this matter is being heard by Town Council and Employees have been informed as to the
process as well as the opportunity to submit comments to the Town Council about this proposed

decision; and,

WHEREAS, the Town Council believes it is in the best interests of the employees of the

Town of Breckenridge to decline participation in the FAMLI program.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF
BRECKENRIDGE, COLORADO:

Section 1. The Town Council of the Town of Breckenridge hereby declines participation
in the Colorado Paid Family and Medical Leave Insurance Program.

Section 2. Notice of the declination of coverage under state law must be made to Town
Employees in writing both posted and concerning the declination of coverage. Such notice will
comply with all of the requirements set forth under 7 CCR 1107-2 F.

Section 3. Notice of this declination along with the date of this decision shall be provided
in writing to the Colorado Division of Labor and Employment.

Section 4. Pursuant to 7 CCR 1107-2, the decision of Town Council to opt out of FAMLI
shall be reconsidered on or before eight years from the passage of this ordinance. The Town
must provide the same notice of the decision in writing to the Colorado Division of Labor and
Employment.

Section 5. The Town Council hereby finds, determines and declares that this ordinance

is necessary and proper to provide for the safety, preserve the health, promote the prosperity,
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and improve the order, comfort and convenience of the Town of Breckenridge and the
inhabitants thereof.

Section 6. The Town Council hereby finds, determines and declares that it has the
power to adopt this ordinance pursuant to the authority granted to home rule municipalities by
Article XX of the Colorado Constitution and the powers contained in the Breckenridge Town
Chatrter.

Section 7. This ordinance shall be published and become effective as provided by
Section 5.9 of the Breckenridge Town Charter.

INTRODUCED, READ ON SECOND READING, APPROVED AND ORDERED
PUBLISHED IN FULL this 27th day of September, 2022. A Public Hearing shall be held at the
regular meeting of the Town Council of the Town of Breckenridge, Colorado on the 27 day of

September, 2022, at 7:00 P.M., or as soon thereafter as possible in the Municipal Building of the

Town.
TOWN OF BRECKENRIDGE, a Colorado
municipal corporation
By:
Eric S. Mamula, Mayor
ATTEST:

Helen Cospolich, CMC,

Town Clerk
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Memorandum

To: All Town of Breckenridge Employees
From: Dana Laverdiere, Director Human Resources
Date: August 25, 2022

Subject: EXHIBIT A, FAMLI Notice of Public Hearing, Town Council

Notice of a public hearing to consider whether Town of Breckenridge will participate in the Colorado Paid
Family and Medical Leave Insurance Program.

The Town of Breckenridge Town Council, of Breckenridge Colorado will hold a public hearing at a
regularly scheduled meeting to be held on Tuesday September 27, 2022, located in the Town of
Breckenridge Council Chambers, 150 Ski Hill Road, Breckenridge, CO for the purpose of considering
whether Town of Breckenridge will or will not participate in the Colorado Paid Family and Medical Leave
Insurance (“FAMLI") Program, for Town of Breckenridge employees. First reading of the council bill will be
on Tuesday September 13, and the public hearing and second reading of the council bill will be on
September 27,

All comments regarding whether the Town of Breckenridge should participate, or decline to participate in
the FAMLI Program may be made at the public hearing in person, or may be made in writing prior to the
public hearing by submitting such comments to the Mayor and Town Council c/o Peyton Rogers at
Mayor@townofbreckenridge.com, or P.O. Box 168, Breckenridge, CO 80424. An employee may request
the comment be anonymous, if preferred.

For additional information or questions please contact Dana Laverdiere, Town of Breckenridge Human
Resources Director at Danal @townofbreckenridge.com or 970.547.3159

Summary

In November, 2020 Colorado voters approved Proposition 118, a ballot initiative establishing a paid family
and medical leave program. The new law, known as the “Paid Family and Medical Leave Insurance Act,”
(FAMLI Act) at C.R.S. 88 8.13.3.401-424, provides for 12 weeks of paid family and medical leave funded
through a payroll tax and paid by employers and employees in a 50/50 split. Although the program is not
effective until 2024, premiums from employees and employers would begin in January 2023. The decision
for local governments to opt-out, must occur in 2022.

Background

The State of Colorado Paid Family Medical Leave Insurance (FAMLI) program provides employees up to
12 weeks of (partially) paid leave to take care of themselves or a family member during life events like
injury, serious iliness, or pregnancy. An additional four weeks of leave is allowed for pregnancy
complications or childbirth complications. Participating employers and employees will both contribute to

19


mailto:Mayor@townofbreckenridge.com
mailto:DanaL@townofbreckenridge.com

premiums for FAMLI. Employers are to start collecting and remitting premiums January 1, 2023, and
benefits would be available to employees starting January 1, 2024.

Premiums are equal to .9% of each employee’s regular weekly wage. Half of the .9% (or .45%) is to
be paid by the employee, and the other half is to be paid by the employer. The employer is
responsible for collecting employee premiums via payroll deduction, and for remitting all premiums to the
State on a quarterly basis. Premiums would be mandatory for all full-time, part-time, seasonal and
temporary employees whether they ever utilize the benefit or not. Colorado employees become eligible to
take paid leave after they have earned at least $2,500 in wages within the State, over a period of a year.

Past 2025, the premium rate will be set each year by the FAMLI Division Director, at the Department of
Labor and Employment, and is based on a formula based on the funds balance and usage rates. The
premium rate amount is statutorily capped at 1.2% of wages.

Benefits during a state approved FAMLI leave, will pay employees between 37% and 90% of their wages,
capped at $1,100 per week. Employees earning about $1,500 per week will receive approximately 68% of
their weekly wage, or $1,018 per week while on FAMLI. The chart below demonstrates the benefit
available to employees based on their weekly wage.

Weekly Wage | Weekly Benefit | Maximum Annual Benefit| Percent of Weekly Wage
500 450 55 400 0%
£1.000 STEE 559,216 T
51.500 51,018 812216 B %
52 000 51100 513200 H5%
£3,000 51,100 £43.200 375

While all municipalities are included in FAMLI by default, a municipality may opt out and avoid the
employer and employee portion of premiums by a vote of a governing body. The municipality must give
prior notice of the vote in the same manner it notices other public business, must provide special notice to
employees, and must take testimony before voting. Declination by a municipality allows employees to
individually opt in to the FAMLI program at their same employee only cost if they so desire. Employees
may still individually opt-in to the program, and submit premiums to have FAMLI coverage, at no
increased cost.

State law requires participation in FAMLI unless the municipality’s governing body votes to opt out of the
program by December 31, 2022.

Financial Considerations:

The Town'’s financial burden in the first year of the FAMLI program of .45% of wages is expected to be
approximately $76,000. In addition, employees would bear the same equivalent financial contribution of
.45%. The program cost may increase up to 33% in 2025 to 1.2% of wages, split between the employer
and employee.

FAMLI Premium Example:
e (annual income x .009) / 2 = employer share
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* (annual income x .009) / 2 = employee share

e FTYR Employee making $28/hr., would pay $262.08 annually in premiums | Employer Premiums
would be $262.08 annually.

e FTYR Employee making $35/hr. would pay $327.60 annually in premiums | Employer Premiums
would be $327.60 annually.

e Employees would pay premiums, regardless if they access the insurance or not.

Benefit Comparisons
The Town currently provides FTYR employees with the following leave benefits at no cost to the
employee:

e Short term disability, at no cost to the employee. The Town’s short term disability plan provides
60% to 70% of pay while on leave. FTYR employees are eligible after 90 days of employment.
Benefits are payable once all accrued paid leave benefits have been exhausted, or after 30 days,
whichever is later.

e Long term disability, at no cost to the employee. The Town’s long term disability plan provides
60% of an employee’s earnings. Disability payments begin after a 90 day waiting period of a
covered disability.

e Sick Leave, at no cost to the employee. The Town also has a sick leave policy for FTYR
employees that accrues at 3.69 hour a pay period, and may be carried over year to year, with a
max balance of 480 hours, or the equivalent of 12 weeks fully paid with the use of sick leave.

e FMLA is provided leave for employees with job protection and time away from work in the event
of illness or injury to themselves or to attend to various needs relating to their families. The
Town’s FML is compliant with the Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993. Employees may use
sick, personal, comp and annual leave while on the Town’s existing Family Medical Leave. All
TOB employees are eligible for this leave if they have worked for the Town for at least 12 months,
and at least 1,250 hours over the past 12 months.

Benefits for Part time and Seasonal employees:

e Paid Time Off (PTO) Bank for Part time and Seasonal Employees. PTO accrues at 1 hour for
every 30 hours worked. This leave policy complies with the Colorado Healthy Families and
Workplace Act which guarantees workers the right to earn paid sick time.

e FMLA All TOB employees are eligible for this leave if they have worked for the Town for at least
12 months, and at least 1,250 hours over the past 12 months.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

The staff recommendation is to opt out of the state-run FAMLI program, and “Decline ALL Participation”.
Opting out of the state-run FAMLI program would allow the Town to avoid having to pay costly premiums
to the State, save our employees from having to pay the state premiums (unless individually desired),
while still providing our employees with the protection of a paid leave program to care for themselves or a
family member in the event of a serious illness or injury. The FAMLI program is a “social insurance” and
would look similar to unemployment insurance, where the employee would file a claim on their own with
the State of Colorado for payment. The State of Colorado pays the employee (the claimant) a portion of
their weekly wages directly through a debit card or direct deposit. With the plans the Town has in place,
Human Resources is able assist employees with short term disability, long term disability, and sick leave.

If an employee desires participation in FAMLI, the option exists to opt-in to the program as an individual
participant.

The State website is: https://famli.colorado.gov/
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Human Resources will notify employees of a decision within 30 days of the Town Council
vote.
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Memo TOWN OF

BRECKENRIDGE

To: Town Council

From: Stefi Szrek, Planner Il

Date: September 21, 2022 (for meeting of September 27, 2022)

Subject: First Reading: Policy 4R Amendments- Mass Bonus for Condos, Inns, and Lodges

The Town Council has requested that staff consider policy changes related to mass bonuses for
condominiums, hotels, inns and lodges due to the impacts created by allowing for additional
mass for common areas. The concern is whether or not the existing mass bonus allowed per
code is reasonable or if condominiums, hotels, inns, and lodges could result in a much larger
size than what is appropriate for the site with the mass bonus.

The existing code allows for a 30% mass bonus. The bonus is allowed for areas such as lobbies,
common areas, hallways and amenity space. The Planning Commission has reviewed this topic
and discussed going to a 15% mass bonus, as most large resort-type buildings account for
approximately 15% of hallways and common areas. The Commission felt that 15% was
reasonable for providing common area space and that allowing a higher percentage mass bonus
(e.g., 25%) would result in over-programming of development sites, creating projects that are out
of scale with the Town’s character.

The Town Council recently reviewed this topic at a work session, and unanimously
recommend to not allow for any mass bonus for amenities and common areas, meaning that
any common space or amenities would need to fit within the Code’s existing mass/density
allocation. The proposed bill showing no mass bonus is attached.

During the work session, staff was asked to provide information on similar, mature resort
communities in regard to their limitations on massing. In comparison to these other
communities, this code change would result in Breckenridge having the least allowance of
buildable square footage compared to other mature mountain towns researched by staff. Below is
a comparison of select Breckenridge development areas to similar development areas in other
mature resort communities.

Peak 7 Base 0.34 30% Mass Bonus Fully built-out. FAR for listed
above allowed density | Breckenridge projects is calculated based
for common uses. on Density and Mass.

Peak 8 Base 431.9 0.67 Minimum of 1 sf Includes unbuilt East Peak 8 Hotel.

GondolaLos | 143 | 0.19 amenity or conference
Master Plan pace p q- T

Potential build-out per approved master
plan.
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Vail Village N/A Vail does not Common area counts No square footage limits or maximum size
Design Area use FAR, uses | against UPA, 20% of | for units. No required setbacks.

UPA. 50 UPA | interior space is

allowed for required to be

accommodatio | common areas.

n units, or 25

UPA for

dwellings.
Aspen 1.5 FAR Common area counts The purpose of the Residential Multi-
(Residential (Maximum against FAR, no Family-A (RMFA) Zone District for
Multi-Family-A) unit size minimum requirement | intensive long-term residential

ranges from for common areas. purposes, Short-term Rentals, and

2,000 -2,500 customary accessory uses within walking

sq. ft.) distance to the center of Town.
Park City 261.6 Unit | 0.72 FAR Common area counts  [1. Retail/commercial uses other than
(Base Area Lot Equivalen | Allowed against UPA, no Support Commercial or Accessory uses
Redevelopment) | ts minimum requirement | require a proportionate reduction in the

proposed. | 0.59 FAR for common areas. square footage that is allocated for the
Any Residential Proposed. other uses.
or Hotel project | UE=
with ten (10) or 2,000 sq. 2. Building square footage does not include
more Residential | ft. Resort Accessory Uses, mechanical,
Unit Equivalents maintenance or storage space that may be
(20,000 square located below grade or parking.
feet) requires a
Master Plan. 3. Underground public convention and
meeting space is allowed in addition to
the total Parcel square footage allowance.

Summit County | Per PUD Per PUD Common areas are

excluded from floor
area calculations.

Per this research, Park City is identified as the most similar in terms of scale and how large
projects are reviewed through a master planning process. Aspen and Vail were developed as
denser communities with taller buildings, therefore their more generous UPA and FAR allotments
make sense from a historic perspective.

Additionally, staff wanted to make note that if the council decides to remove the Mass Bonus, any
meeting rooms or recreation leisure amenities will be required to use allotted density in order to
meet the requirement of one (1) square foot for every thirty-five (35) square feet of gross floor area
per Policy 24R: A. Meeting And Conference Rooms: All condominium/hotels, hotels, lodges, and
inns shall provide meeting areas or recreation and leisure amenities, at a ratio of one square foot
of meeting or recreation and leisure amenity area for every thirty five (35) square feet of gross

dwelling area.

Staff will be available at the meeting to answer any questions.
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COUNCIL BILLNO. ___

Series 2022
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING POLICY 4 RELATIVE OF THE DEVELOPMENT CODE
CONCERNING MASS.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF
BRECKENRIDGE, COLORADO:

Section 1. That section 9-1-19-4R: entitled Policy 4 (Relative) Mass be amended by
deleting the language stricken and adding the language underlined to read as follows:
9-1-19-4R:  POLICY 4 (RELATIVE) MASS:

A. Additional aboveground square footage may be allowed over and above the

intensity/density calculation based on the following formulas for accessory uses sueh-as

including, but not limited to, garages, meeting rooms, lobbies, hallways, recreational areas,

common areas. ete-:

1. Single-Family, Duplexes, Bed And Breakfasts, And Townhouses Outside The Conservation
District And New Construction On Properties That Do Not Have Existing Primary Historic
Structures Within the Conservation District: Single-family, duplex, bed and breakfast, and
townhouse developments may be allowed an additional twenty percent (20%) of aboveground
floor area as specified in section 9-1-19-3A, "Policy 3 (Absolute) Density/Intensity”, subsection
H, of this chapter and section 9-1-19-3R, "Policy 3 (Relative) Compliance With Density/Intensity
Guidelines", subsection B, of this chapter for the provision of garages, common amenity areas,
and common storage areas. This mass bonus does not apply to single-family or duplex
structures listed in section 9-1-19-4A, "Policy 4 (Absolute) Mass" subsection A, of this chapter.
2. Single-Family, Duplexes, Bed And Breakfasts, And Townhouses Within The Conservation
District: The character of the Conservation District can be altered when overall massing of
structures is not consistent with the massing associated with surviving historic structures. Up to
an additional fifteen percent (15%) aboveground floor area may be allowed for the provision of
garages, common amenity areas, and common storage areas, based on the following
assignments of negative points and criteria:

% Mass Bonus Point Deductions

0.1- 10% 2

10.01- 15% 4
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Mass bonuses may only be allowed if the massing is located on the property in a manner that is
not highly visible from the street. Methods to achieve this include:

1. Placing the massing to the rear of the structure or addition; or

2. Limiting the extension of sidewalls of the addition beyond the sidewalls of the principal
historic structure so that the side yards are kept open. Landscaping should be used to further
provide screening, but should not be the only measure used to reduce visibility.

3. Apartments And Boarding Houses: Apartment and boarding house developments may be
allowed an additional fifteen percent (15%) of aboveground floor area for the provision of
amenities and/or common areas.

4. Condominiums, Hotels, Inns, And Lodges: Condominiums, hotels, inns, lodges, and other

similar uses m

beencounteddo not have an additional mass bonus for the provision of amenities and/or

common areas. Any additional common area space abeve-this-additionabtwenty five percent

{25%) shall be counted as eemmereial density as specified in section 9-1-19-3A, "Policy 3

(Absolute) Density/Intensity," of this chapter.
Compliance with the aboveground square footage recommendations as set forth here is
encouraged. Mass is the total aboveground square footage of a project (density + common
areas). Deviations in excess of the maximum allowed total square footage shall only be allowed
through density transfers pursuant to section 9-1-17-12 of this chapter and shall be assessed
negative points according to the following schedule:
The following formula shall be utilized to determine any deviations from these guidelines:

% Deviation Up From Guidelines Point Deductions
5 x (point deduction) 0.1- 5% 2%

5.01- 10% 3

10.01-15% 4
15.01-20% 5
20.01-30% 6
30.01-40% 7
40.01-50% 8
50.01% and above 20
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* Excess mass is exempt from a 2 point deduction if the density is transferred pursuant to
subsection 9-1-17-12B of this chapter and if the total excess mass for the project does not
exceed 5 percent of the maximum mass allowed. This exemption does not apply to any
transfers of density/mass into the Historic District.

5. Accessory structures, such as carports, parking garages, and trash enclosures are not

considered mass and do not count towards mass calculations if they are not fully enclosed.

Structures that have a minimum of 18 inches of two or more wall planes open aired, including

mesh or grating, are not considered fully enclosed structures.

B. In aland use district where density is calculated by a floor area ratio only, residential and
mixed use projects shall not be allowed additional square footage for accessory uses, and the
total mass of the building shall be that allowed by the floor area ratio of the specific districts. No
additional mass shall be allowed for a commercial use.

C. The mass of property located in Land Use District 1 which is proposed to be used as an
interpretative building in a public park shall not be counted under this policy if the Planning
Commission finds that the proposed use is appropriate for the site based upon good planning

practices as reflected by the other absolute and relative development policies of this chapter.

Section 2. The Town Council hereby finds, determines and declares that this ordinance
is necessary and proper to provide for the safety, preserve the health, promote the prosperity,
and improve the order, comfort and convenience of the Town of Breckenridge and the

inhabitants thereof.

Section 3. This ordinance shall be published and become effective as provided by

Section 5.9 of the Breckenridge Town Charter.

INTRODUCED, READ ON FIRST READING, APPROVED AND ORDERED
PUBLISHED IN FULL this 27" day of September, 2022. A Public Hearing shall be held at the
regular meeting of the Town Council of the Town of Breckenridge, Colorado on the __ day of
__,2022.

TOWN OF BRECKENRIDGE, a Colorado

municipal corporation
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ATTEST:

Helen Cospolich, CMC,

Town Clerk

APPROVED IN FORM

Town Attorney

By:

Eric S. Mamula, Mayor
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TOWN OF

BRECKENRIDGE

To: Breckenridge Town Council
From: Melanie Leas — Housing Project Manager
Date: 9/21/2022 (for 9/27/2022)

Subject: A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT

WITH THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF SUMMIT COUNTY,
COLORADO CONCERNING THE LOGE HOTEL CONVERSION

Staff has been working with Summit County on a collaboration to convert the Loge Camps Hotel off Tiger
Road (Wayside Inn) to workforce housing. On September 14, 2022, the Town and County acquired the
property, and staff has drafted an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) outlining the terms of this
collaboration. This IGA was approved by the Board of County Commissioners on September 13, 2022.
The key elements of the IGA include:

e The Parties agree to take all action reasonably necessary and to cooperate on the acquisition,
operation, improvement, redevelopment, and management of the project;

e The Parties agree to split the cost, with each Party paying one half of the costs for the acquisition,
operation, improvement, redevelopment, and management of the project;

e The Parties will agree upon a qualified person to manage the day to day operations;

e The Parties will agree on tenant qualifications, rents, and number of units reserved for each
Party’s use;

e The Parties will agree to convey the Project to a jointly operated multi-jurisdictional Authority
(such Authority may own multiple County/Town properties, including Huron Landing and COTO
Flat);

e Any decision to move forward with the project redevelopment is contingent on the Parties
reaching agreement on the final design and final cost of the project; and

e The Parties agree to share all net operating revenue.

The immediate plans for the property are to perform some minor repairs and to make units available as
transitional housing for Town of Breckenridge and Summit County employees this winter. Town and
County staff anticipate that we can continue to utilize the property for transitional housing under the
current County zoning and current County building approval. In order to qualify as transitional housing
the employee leases will be 30 day renewable leases. This eliminates the need to rezone or reclassify
the property. Our goal is to have the units available the end of October or early November. The 38
residential units are furnished, but do not include cooking facilities. There is a communal kitchen that will
be available to the residents. Town and County staff are working to:
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e Execute a Property Management Agreement and establish property policies-no smoking,
deposits, pets OK, etc;

o Evaluate the condition of each unit and identifying specific immediate repairs (specifically
checking fire alarm, security system, primary boiler, and individual gas fired furnaces);

e Coordinate with electrical and mechanical subcontractors on minor repairs;
e Coordinate with builder on minor roof repair/demo;

e Coordinate security system/keys and codes;

e  Contract for property wide WIFI and other utilities; and

e Coordinate with Human Resource Department on lease up of Town units (assume 15-18 Town
units) to be priced at $800 per month.

Staff will provide regular updates to Town Council as the project proceeds. Although the IGA provides
for redevelopment in the future, we are not anticipating any significant redevelopment in the immediate
future. For budget purposes, it should be noted that we have included the acquisition and minor repairs
in the 2022 housing program expenses and approximately $500,000 in 2024 for utilities (water/sewer
upgrades). After the initial lease up, Staff will initiate the process for annexation to the sanitation district
and to the Town of Breckenridge.

Staff supports the IGA and recommends approval of the Resolution. Please note that there are some
minor non-substantive edits that we are recommending to the County prior to execution. They are
highlighted in the attached draft. Staff will be happy to answer questions and discuss this in more detail
at your meeting on September 271,

Recommended Motion:

I move to approve Resolution (insert number), A resolution approving an intergovernmental agreement
with the Board of County Commissioners of Summit County, Colorado concerning the Loge Hotel
conversion.

® Page 2
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A RESOLUTION
SERIES 2022

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE TOWN OF BRECKENRIDGE AND
SUMMIT COUNTY, COLORADO TO ACQUIRE THE LOGE HOTEL
FOR WORKFORCE HOUSING.

WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Breckenridge (“Town”) and the Board of
County Commissioners of Summit County, Colorado (hereinafter “Parties”) desire to enter into
this Intergovernmental Agreement (“IGA”) attached hereto as Exhibit A;

WHEREAS, the Parties shall split evenly the cost of the acquisition, ownership,
operation, and redevelopment of the LOGE Hotel to be used for workforce housing;

WHEREAS, governmental entities are authorized by Article X1V of the Colorado
Constitution and Part 2 of Article 1 of Title 29, C.R.S., to co-operate and contract with one
another to provide any function, service, or facility lawfully authorized to each of the co-
operating or contracting governmental entities; and

WHEREAS, the Town Council has reviewed the proposed IGA, and finds and determines
that it would be in the best interest of the Town to enter into such agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF
BRECKENRIDGE, COLORADO, as follows:

Section 1. The proposed Intergovernmental Agreement between the Town of
Breckenridge and Summit County is hereby approved and the Town Manager is hereby
authorized, empowered and directed to execute such agreement for and on behalf of the Town of
Breckenridge. In the event it is deemed necessary, the Town Manager in consultation with the
Town Attorney, may make minor modifications to the Intergovernmental Agreement.

Section 2. This resolution shall become effective upon its adoption.

RESOLUTION APPROVED AND ADOPTED this ___ day of September 27, 2022.
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ATTEST:

Helen Cospolich, Town Clerk

APPROVED IN FORM

Town Attorney

Date

TOWN OF BRECKENRIDGE

By

Eric Mamula, Mayor
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INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT
(LOGE Workforce Housing Project)

This Intergovernmental Agreement (this “Agreement”) is dated :
2022 (the “Effective Date”) and is between the TOWN OF BRECKENRIDGE, a Colorado
municipal corporation (the “Town”) and SUMMIT COUNTY, COLORADO, acting by and
though the BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF SUMMIT COUNTY, COLORADO
(the “County”). The Town and the County are sometimes referred to individually as a “Party,”
and together as the “Parties.”

Background

The Parties have been working cooperatively to analyze, evaluate, and plan for the joint
acquisition and operation of an affordable workforce housing project, on real property located in
unincorporated Summit County, Colorado, and as more particularly described on the attached
Exhibit “A” (the “Property”). Such project does not yet have an agreed upon name and has
been generally referred to as the “Loge-Wayside Inn Project”, and will be referred to in this
Agreement as the “Project.” There are currently 38 hotel rooms located in two buildings on the
site.

The Parties have evaluated the acquisition of this property and believe there is public
benefit in acquiring this property for workforce housing in its existing condition, and in addition
there is potential for annexation and or redevelopment of the property to serve as workforce
housing. The Parties are in agreement that each will pay one half of the costs of acquisition,
ownership, operation, and redevelopment will be shared 56-56- This Agreement is executed for
the purpose of providing specific details, terms, and conditions regarding the Parties
collaboration on the Project.

This Agreement is entered into pursuant to the authority granted by Article XIV, Section
18(2)(a) of the Colorado Constitution and Part 2 of Article 1 of Title 29, C.R.S.

Agreement

For and in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants contained herein, and intending
to be legally bound, the Parties agree as follows:

1. Term. The term of this Agreement commences as of the Effective Date of this
Agreement and will continue in perpetuity unless the Parties mutually agree to terminate
the Agreement.

2. Agreement to Cooperate. The Parties agree to take all action reasonably necessary for the
acquisition, operation, improvement, redevelopment, and management of the Project and
will not unreasonably delay the Project, and agree to cooperate with each other fairly and
in good faith with respect to all aspects of the acquisition, operation, improvement,

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT
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redevelopment, and management of the Project.

Mutual Agreement Required. Unless otherwise specified in this Agreement, all
substantial decisions concerning the acquisition, operation, improvement, redevelopment,
and management of the Project requires the mutual written agreement of the Town and
the County.

Conditions Precedent. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, the
decision to proceed with redevelopment of the Project is subject to the Parties reaching
agreement on all of the following issues:

A. the final design of the redevelopment of the Project;

B. the estimated final cost of the redevelopment of the Project, and the
guaranteed maximum price (“GMP”) of constructing the redeveloped Project,
if there should be one;

C. all other matters related to final design, construction, financing, and initial
operation of the redeveloped Project.

If, for any reason, the Parties are unable to reach an agreement as to all such issues this
Agreement may be terminated by either Party without liability for breach of this
Agreement.

Cost of the Project.

A. Subject to the adjustments provided for in this Section, and as otherwise
provided in this Agreement, the Parties agree to each pay one-half of the total
cost of acquiring, operating, redeveloping, managing, and maintaining the
Project throughout the term of this Agreement.

B. As used in this Section, the “cost of acquiring, operating, redeveloping,
managing, and maintaining the Project” means all out-of-pocket costs incurred
by the Parties in connection with the Project.

C. ltisanticipated that each of the Parties may provide certain agreed upon “in
kind” services or benefits related to the acquisition, operation, redevelopment,
management, and maintenance of the Project. Subject to mutual agreement,
these in kind contributions may not be subject to the provisions of Subsection
A of this Section. It is agreed that the amount of in kind contributions by the
Parties need not be equal in number or value.

D. Notwithstanding anything contained in this Agreement to the contrary, it is
agreed that any unanticipated cost of acquisition, operation, redevelopment,
management, and maintenance of the Project will be paid equally by the
Parties; provided, however, if such unanticipated cost arises solely from the

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT
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10.

action or inaction of one of the Parties, such Party will be solely responsible
for the payment of such cost. As used in this Subsection D, “unanticipated
cost of acquisition, operation, redevelopment, management, and maintenance
of the Project” means any cost that is not the subject to the Parties’ agreed
budget for the development, construction, operation, management, and
maintenance of the Project.

E. Project Financing for the Project. The Parties anticipate to each contribute
approximately $3,000,000 in cash for the acquisition of the Project.

Revenue of the Project. The Parties agree to share all net operating revenue. “Net
Operating Revenue” means the total of all income received by the Parties from the
operation of the Project, less all expenses incurred and paid by the Parties in connection
with the operation of the Project.

Management of the Project. The Parties will agree upon a qualified person to manage the
day-to-day operations of the Project on their behalf. The form and substance of the
management contract, if any, and all related documents will be subject to the reasonable
approval of both Parties and their respective attorneys.

Tenant Qualifications, Rents, and Other Matters. Upon acquisition of the Project, the
Parties will agree upon:

A. the initial leasing rates for the rental units in the Project;

B. the form and substance of the income and other qualifications and restrictions
that will apply to tenants of the Project;

C. the establishment and maintenance of a reserve fund for the Project; and
D. other issues related to the operation and management of the Project;-
E. the final number of units to be reserved for each Parties’ use;-

F. Conveyance of the Project to a jointly operated multi-jurisdictional Authority
created for the purposes of owning, developing, managing, operating and
renting affordable workforce housing projects.

Meet and Confer Obligation. At least once monthly, or more frequently if necessary or
desirable, the Parties agree to meet to discuss matters related to the design development
of the Project.

Day-To-Day Communications. All communications between the Parties relating to the
day-to-day activities of the Project will be exchanged between the respective Project
Representatives of Town and County who will be designated by the Parties promptly
upon the execution of this Agreement. Either Party may change their designated Project
Representative at any time.

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT
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13.

Books and Records. Within 60 days after the Effective Date of this Agreement the Parties
will agree upon how, where, and by whom the books of account for the Project will be
maintained. Each Party will have the right, at its sole cost and expense, at all reasonable
times during usual business hours to audit, examine, and copy the books of account of the
Project. Such right may be exercised through any agent or employee of such Party.

Waiver of Right to Partition. Neither the Town nor the County have any right to partition
the Property or any of the Parties’ jointly owned assets exclusively used or associated
with the Project, and both the Town and the County hereby irrevocably waive any and all
rights that they might have to maintain any action for partition of the Property and such
jointly owned assets.

Insurance.

A. Required Insurance. Throughout the term of this Agreement the Town and the
County will each procure and maintain the following minimum insurance
coverages:

i.  workers’ compensation insurance to cover obligations imposed by
applicable laws for any employee of the Town or the County (as
applicable).

ii.  commercial general liability insurance with limits of liability not less than
the limits of liability established from time to time by the Colorado
Governmental Immunity Act, Article 10 of Title 24, C.R.S., as amended
from time to time (“Act”). The policy must include coverage for bodily
injury, broad form property damage (including complete operations),
personal injury (including coverage for contractual and employee’s acts),
blanket contractual, products, and completed operations.

Such coverages will be procured and maintained with forms and insurers
reasonably acceptable to the other Party. All coverage will be continuously
maintained until this Agreement has been terminated in accordance with the
requirements of this Agreement. In the case of any claims-made policy, the
necessary retroactive dates and extended reporting periods will be procured to
maintain such continuous coverage.

B. Deductibles. The Town and the County are each solely responsible for any
deductible amounts required to be paid under their own required insurance
policies described in Subsection A of this Section.

C. Insurance Certificate. Each Party will provide the other Party with a certificate
of insurance evidencing that policies providing the required coverages,
conditions, and minimum limits are in full force and effect, and listing the
other Party as an additional insured. Such certificates will be provided within
30 days of the Effective Date of this Agreement, and on each renewal or

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT
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replacement of the required insurance policies throughout the term of this
Agreement. The completed insurance certificates will be sent to the Parties at
the addresses provided in Section 19.

Mutual Indemnification.

A. Indemnification By Town. To the extent permissible by law, the Town will

indemnify and defend the County, its officers, employees, insurers, and self-
insurance pool, against all liability, claims, and demands, on account of injury,
loss, or damage, including, without limitation, claims arising from bodily
injury, personal injury, sickness, disease, death, property loss or damage, or
any other loss of any kind whatsoever, arising out of or in any manner
connected with this Agreement, to the extent that such injury, loss, or damage
is caused by the negligence or intentional wrongful act of the Town, or any
officer, employee, representative, or agent of the Town; except to the extent
such liability, claim, or demand arises through the negligence or intentional
wrongful act of the County, its officers, employees, or agents, or the County’s
breach of this Agreement. To the extent indemnification is required under this
Agreement, the Town agrees to investigate, handle, respond to, and to provide
defense for and defend against, any such liability, claims, or demands at its
expense, and to bear all other costs and expenses related thereto, including
court costs and attorney fees.

. Indemnification By County. To the extent permissible by law, the County will

indemnify and defend the Town, its officers, employees, insurers, and self-
insurance pool, against all liability, claims, and demands, on account of injury,
loss, or damage, including, without limitation, claims arising from bodily
injury, personal injury, sickness, disease, death, property loss or damage, or
any other loss of any kind whatsoever, arising out of or in any manner
connected with this Agreement, to the extent that such injury, loss, or damage
is caused by the negligence or intentional wrongful act of the County, or any
officer, employee, representative, or agent of the County; except to the extent
such liability, claim, or demand arises through the negligence or intentional
wrongful act of the Town, its officers, employees, or agents, or the Town’s
breach of this Agreement. To the extent indemnification is required under this
Agreement, the County agrees to investigate, handle, respond to, and to
provide defense for and defend against, any such liability, claims, or demands
at its expense, and to bear all other costs and expenses related thereto,
including court costs and attorney fees.

. Indemnity Subject To Applicable Law. To the extent permissible by law, the

obligation of a Party to indemnify and defend the other Party pursuant to this
Section is expressly subject to any applicable limitation or provision of the
Act, or any other law providing similar limitations or protections. Neither
Party waives the right to assert that its obligation to indemnify and defend the

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT
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other Party is barred by any applicable provision of the Colorado Constitution
that prohibits one Party from indemnifying the other Party.

Indemnity For Worker’s Compensation Claims.

The Town will indemnify and defend the County with respect to any
claim, damage, or loss arising out of any worker’s compensation claim of
any employee of the Town.

The County will indemnify and defend the Town with respect to any
claim, damage, or loss arising out of any worker’s compensation claim of
any employee of the County.

Survival. To the extent permissible by law, the he obligation of a Party to
indemnify and defend the other Party pursuant to this Section will survive the
termination of this Agreement, and, subject to any applicable statute of
limitation, will continue to be enforceable thereafter until such obligations are
fully performed.

Termination. This Agreement may be terminated as follows:

A. As provided in Sections 4 of this Agreement;

For default as provided in Section 167; or

C. For non-appropriation as provided in Section 20%:;

Default; Resolution Of Disputes.

A. Default. A default exists under this Agreement if any Party violates any

covenant, condition, or obligation required to be performed under this
Agreement. As used in this Section, a Party violating any covenant, condition,
or obligation required to be performed under this Agreement is the
“Defaulting Party,” and the other Party is the “Non-Defaulting Party.” If a
Defaulting Party fails to cure such default within 30 business days after the
other Non-Defaulting Party gives written notice of the default to the
Defaulting Party then, at the Non-Defaulting Party’s option, the Non-
Defaulting Party may terminate this Agreement, subject to the provisions of
Section 176 of this Agreement concerning the disposition of the Project and
the Parties’ property upon termination of this Agreement. If a default is not
capable of being cured within 30 business days, a Defaulting Party will not be
in default if it commences curing the default within 30 business days after
receipt of written notice of default from the Non-Defaulting Party, and
thereafter cures such default with due diligence and in good faith.
Notwithstanding any Party’s right to terminate this Agreement for an uncured

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT
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default, this Agreement is subject to the rights of any Party to invoke the
remaining provisions of this Section.

. Negotiation. Either Party may give the other Party written notice of any

dispute arising out of or related to this Agreement that is not resolved in the
normal course of business. The Parties will attempt in good faith to resolve
any such dispute promptly by negotiations between the Parties’ authorized
representatives. Within 15 business days after receipt of said notice,
authorized representatives will meet at a mutually acceptable time and place,
and thereafter as often as they reasonably deem necessary, to exchange
relevant information and to attempt to resolve the dispute. If the matter has not
been resolved within 60 business days of the notice of dispute, or if the Parties
fail to initially meet within 15 business days, either Party to the dispute may
initiate mediation of the controversy as provided below.

. Mediation. If the dispute has not been resolved by negotiation as provided

above, the Parties will endeavor to settle the dispute by mediation with a
neutral third party. If the Parties encounter difficulty in agreeing on a neutral
third party, they may each appoint a neutral third party who will agree on a
mediator, and the Parties agree to mediate with said mediator.

. Judicial Action. Any dispute arising out of or relating to this Agreement or

the breach, termination, or validity hereof, which has not been resolved by the
methods set forth above within 30 days of the initiation of mediation, may be
finally resolved by appropriate judicial action commenced in a court of
competent jurisdiction. The Parties agree to venue in the courts of Summit
County, Colorado with respect to any dispute arising out of or relating to this
Agreement. The Parties hereby waive the right to a jury trial in any action to
enforce, interpret, or construe this Agreement.

. Provisional Remedies. The procedures specified in this Section are the sole

and exclusive procedures for the resolution of disputes among the Parties
arising out of or relating to this Agreement; provided, however, that a Party
may seek a preliminary injunction or other provisional judicial relief if, in its
judgment, such action is necessary to avoid irreparable damage or to preserve
the status quo. Despite such action, the Parties will continue to participate in
good faith in the procedures specified in this Section.

. Performance To Continue. Each Party is required to continue to perform its

obligations under this Agreement pending final resolution of any dispute
arising out of or relating to this Agreement.

. Extension Of Deadlines. All deadlines specified in this Section may be

extended by mutual agreement in writing signed by the Parties.

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT
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17.

18.

19.

H. Costs. Each Party will pay its own costs with respect to negotiation and
mediation. The prevailing Party in any judicial action is entitled to
reimbursement from the other Party for all reasonable costs and expenses,
including attorney fees and expert witness fees, in connection with such
judicial action.

Disposition of Project and Property Upon Termination. Upon the lawful termination of
this Agreement pursuant to Section 15, the Parties will promptly and in good faith
attempt to agree upon a fair and equitable disposition of the Property, the Parties’ jointly
owned assets exclusively used or associated with the Project, and all other remaining
Project assets, income, and liabilities. For this purpose, authorized representatives of the
Parties will meet not later than 15 business days after the effective date of termination at
a mutually acceptable time and place, and thereafter as often as they reasonably deem
necessary, to exchange relevant information and to attempt to resolve all issues related to
the disposition of the Property and all remaining Project assets, income, and liabilities. If
the matter has not been resolved within 60 business days of the effective date of
termination of this Agreement, the Property, together with all of the Parties’ jointly
owned assets exclusively used or associated with the Project, will be offered for sale for
cash at their then fair market value. The “Fair Market Value” of the Property and the
Parties’ jointly owned assets will be determined by an appraiser mutually acceptable to
the Parties. The appraiser will be a licensed Colorado real estate broker with no less than
10 years’ experience in appraising real property in Summit County, Colorado. If the
Parties are unable to agree upon a mutually acceptable appraiser, they each may appoint a
neutral third party to agree on an appraiser. The appraiser’s determination will be binding
on the Parties. The cost of the appraisal will be paid equally by the Parties. Either Party
may be the purchaser of the other Party’s right, title, and interest in the Property and the
Parties’ jointly owned assets exclusively used or associated with the Project. The net sale
proceeds of the Property and the Parties’ jointly owned assets exclusively used or
associated with the Project, will be used to pay the balance of the Debt Service for the
Project, and any balance of such proceeds will then be divided equally between the Town
and the County. The provisions of this Section control over the dispute resolution
provisions of Section 16.

Force Majeure. Neither Party is liable to the other for any failure, delay, or interruption in
the performance of any of the terms, covenants, or conditions of this Agreement due to
causes beyond the control of that Party, including, without limitation, strikes, boycotts,
labor dispute, embargoes, shortages of materials, acts of God, acts of the public enemy,
terrorism, acts of superior governmental authority, weather conditions, floods, riots,
rebellion, sabotage or any other circumstance for which such Party is not responsible or
which is not in its power to control.

Notices. All notices required or permitted under this Agreement must be given by
registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, or by hand or
commercial carrier delivery, or by telecopies directed as follows:

If intended for the Town to:
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT
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20.

Town of Breckenridge

P.O. Box 168

150 Ski Hill Road

Breckenridge, Colorado 80424

Attn: Rick G. Holman, Town Manager
Telecopier number:  (970)547-3104
Telephone number:  (970)453-2251

with a copy in each case (which will not constitute notice) to:

Kirsten Crawford
Town Attorney

If intended for the County, to:

Board of the County Commissioners
P.O. Box 68

Breckenridge, Colorado 80424
County Manager’s Office
Telephone number: (970)453-3401
Telecopier number: (970)453-3535

with a copy in each case (which will not constitute notice) to:

Jeffrey L. Huntley, Esq.

Summit County Attorney

P.O. Box 68

Breckenridge, Colorado 80424
Telephone number: (970)453-3407
Telecopier number: (970)454-3535

Any notice delivered by mail in accordance with this Section is effective on the third
business day after being deposited in any post office or postal box regularly maintained
by the United States Postal Service. Any notice delivered by telecopier in accordance
with this Section is effective upon receipt if concurrently with sending by telecopier
receipt is confirmed orally by telephone and a copy of said notice is sent by certified
mail, return receipt requested, on the same day to that intended recipient. Any notice
delivered by hand or commercial carrier is effective upon actual receipt. Either Party, by
notice given as above, may change the address to which future notices may be sent. E-
mail is not a valid method for the giving of notice under this Agreement.

Annual Appropriation.

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT
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21.

22,

23.

A. Financial obligations of the Town under this Agreement payable after the
current fiscal year in which this Agreement is executed are contingent upon
funds for that purpose being appropriated, budgeted, and otherwise made
available by the Town Council of the Town of Breckenridge, Colorado.

B. Financial obligations of the County under this Agreement payable after the
current fiscal year in which this Agreement is executed are contingent upon
funds for that purpose being appropriated, budgeted, and otherwise made
available by the Board of County Commissioners of Summit County,
Colorado.

C. If the governing body of the either Party (the “Non-Appropriating Party”)
fails to appropriate and budget sufficient funds to pay the financial obligations
of the Non-Appropriating Party under this Agreement, this Agreement may be
terminated by either Party without penalty.

D. In the event of non-appropriation the Non-Appropriating Party will, upon
request of the other Party, execute, acknowledge, and deliver to the other
Party a deed conveying to the other Party all of the Non-Appropriating Party’s
right, title, and interest, of whatever kind or nature, in and to the Property. The
conveyance of the Property pursuant to this Subsection D will not be a waiver
of the Non-Appropriating Party’s rights under this Agreement. The provisions
of this Section D are specifically enforceable, and both Parties irrevocably
waive the right to challenge the enforceability of such specific performance
remedy.

E. Neither the Town’s nor the County’s obligations under this Agreement will
constitute a general obligation indebtedness or multiple year direct or indirect
debt or other financial obligation whatsoever within the meaning of the
Constitution or laws of the State of Colorado.

Governmental Immunity. The Parties are each relying on, and do not waive or intend to
waive by any provision of this Agreement, the monetary limitations of the Act, which
limitations are as of the date of this Agreement $424,000 per person and $1,195,000 per
occurrence, or any other limitation, right, immunity, defense or protection otherwise
available to the Town and the County, and their respective officers, representatives,
agents and employees.

Third Parties. This Agreement does not confer upon or grant to any third party any right
to claim damages or to bring suit, action, or other proceeding against either the Town or
the County because of any breach of this Agreement, or because of any of the terms,
covenants, agreements, and conditions contained in this Agreement.

Waiver. The failure of either Party to exercise any of its rights under this Agreement is

not a waiver of those rights. A Party waives only those rights specified in writing and
signed by either Party waiving its rights.

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT
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12
13
14
15

16
17
18

19
20

21
22
23
24

25
26
27

28
29

30
31

32
33
34
35

25.24. Applicable Law. This Agreement is to be interpreted in all respects in accordance with

the laws of the State of Colorado.

26:25. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement and understanding
between the Parties as to the subject matter of this Agreement, and supersedes any prior
agreement or understanding relating thereto.

27.26. Amendment. This Agreement may be modified or amended only by a duly authorized
written instrument executed by the Parties. No oral amendment or modification of this
Agreement is allowed.

28:27. Severability. If any of the provisions of this Agreement are declared by a final, non-
appealable judgment court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal, or
unenforceable in any respect, the validity, legality, and enforceability of the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will not in any way be affected or impaired thereby.

29.28. “Day” Defined. Unless specifically indicated to be a business day, the term “day” when
used in this Agreement means a calendar day. A “business day” is a day when the banks
in the Town of Breckenridge, Colorado are open for business.

30.29. Section Headings. Section and subsection headings are inserted for convenience only
and in no way limit or define the interpretation to be placed upon this Agreement.

34.30. Authority. The individuals executing this Agreement on behalf of each of the Parties
represent to the other Party that they have all requisite powers and authority to cause the
Party for whom they have signed to enter into this Agreement, and to bind such Party to
fully perform its obligations as set forth in this Agreement.

32.31. No Adverse Construction. Both Parties acknowledge having had the opportunity to
participate in the drafting of this Agreement. This Agreement is not to be construed
against either Party based upon authorship.

33.32. Incorporation of Exhibits. All exhibits referred to in this Agreement are attached to and
incorporated into this Agreement by reference.

34.33. Binding Effect. This Agreement is binding upon, and inures to the benefit of, the Parties
and their respective successor governing boards.

35:34. Approval By Governing Boards or Other Authority. In accordance with Section 29-1-
203(1), C.R.S., this Agreement will not become effective unless and until it has been
approved by the governing bodies of both the Town and the County, or by such persons
as has the power to approve this Agreement on behalf of the Town and the County.

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT
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TOWN OF BRECKENRIDGE, a Colorado
municipal corporation

By:
Eric S. Mamula, Mayor

ATTEST:

Helen Cospolich

Town Clerk
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF
SUMMIT COUNTY, COLORADO
By:
Tamara Pogue, Chair
ATTEST:

Clerk and Recorder, and ex-officio
clerk to the Board of the County Commissioners

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT
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EXHIBIT “A”
TO
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT
(LOGE-Wayside Inn)

Legal Description of the Property

A portion of land in Section 18, Township 6 South, Range 77 West of the 6" PM, Mining Claims
containing approximately 1.81 acres, Braddock Placer M.S. # 13465, together with the well site
and all appurtenant easements within the Riley Placer, M.S. #4713, Section 18, T. 6S. R. 77 W.;

Lot 20 Ten Mile Vista Filing No. 2; and other lands all as described in Exhibit A, attached and
incorporated herein.

Also known as: 0165 High Tor Road, Summit County, Colorado

Exhibit “A”

45



=

Memo TOWN OF

To: Town Council

From: Town Attorney

Date: September 27, 2022

Subiject: Resolution Finding the Annexation Petition for the Entrada Property is in Substantial

Compliance with C.R.S. § 31-12-107 and Setting a Public Hearing on November 8, 2022
for the Purpose of Considering Annexation into the Town of Breckenridge

The applicant, Breckenridge Grand Vacations (“BGV”), proposes to annex and zone tracts of
land in unincorporated Summit County Colorado known as the “Entrada” property due to its
proximity to the entrance to the Town of Breckenridge. BGV has acquired the property in order
to develop workforce housing residential units. The Entrada property is approximately 1.415
acres of currently undeveloped land. The entire land area proposed for annexation is 1.718
acres which is comprised of both Entrada property as well as Town and County owned property
that will be needed for future Town right of way.

The Town has identified the property as appropriate for potential annexation within the
municipality through the annual Three-Mile Plan. The applicant submitted an Annexation
Petition with the Town Clerk on August 29, 2022, attached to the Resolution. The applicant has
submitted the Annexation Petition in accordance with the provisions of the Municipal Annexation
Act of 1965 ("the Act"), Title 31, Article 12, Part 1, C.R.S., for annexation of the subject property
into the Town as described in the Petition. On September 13, 2022, the Town Clerk referred
the Annexation Petition to the Town Council as a communication as provided by C.R.S. § 31-
12-107(2)(f).

Staff recommends that the Town Council find and determine that the Annexation Petition is in
substantial compliance with C.R.S. § 31-12-107(1) and approve the Resolution. Staff further
recommends that Town Council set the public hearing date to be held on November 8, 2022 to
consider the eligibility of the unincorporated land described in the Annexation Petition to be
annexed into the Town, as provided by the state law.
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RESOLUTION
SERIES 2022

A RESOLUTION FINDING A PETITION FOR ANNEXATION OF 1.718 ACRES

OF UNDEVELOPED LAND KNOWN AS ENTRADA TO BE IN SUBSTANTIAL

COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 31-12-107(1), C.R.S. AND SETTING A

HEARING DATE OF NOVEMBER 8, 2022 FOR THE TOWN OF

BRECKENRIDGE TOWN COUNCIL TO CONSIDER THE ANNEXATION OF

THE AREA.

WHEREAS, a Petition for Annexation of the hereinafter described real property has been
filed with the Town Clerk of the Town of Breckenridge, Colorado and is attached hereto as
Exhibit A; and

WHEREAS, the Petition has been referred to the Town Council of the Town of
Breckenridge, Colorado, for a determination of substantial compliance with the requirements of
Section 31-12-107(1), C.R.S.; and

WHEREAS, the Town Council has been advised by the staff, and has taken official
notice of all maps, records and other information and other materials on file with the Town of
Breckenridge, Colorado, regarding said petition.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF
BRECKENRIDGE, COLORADO, as follows:

Section 1. That the Town Council finds the Petition for Annexation, Exhibit A hereto, to
be in substantial compliance with Section 31-12-107(1), C.R.S.

Section 2. The Town Council hereby sets a public hearing on the Petition for
Annexation for November 8, 2022 at 7:00 P.M. or as soon thereafter as agenda permits, at the
Breckenridge Town Hall, 150 Ski Hill Road, Breckenridge, Colorado, for the purposes of
determining and finding whether the area proposed to be annexed meets the applicable
requirements of Sections 31-12-104 and 31-12-105, C.R.S., or such parts thereof and Section
30 of Article Il of the Colorado Constitution, to determine the eligibility of the area for annexation
and to determine whether the area should be annexed to the Town of Breckenridge.

Section 3. The Town Clerk shall publish a Notice of Public Hearing once a week for
four successive weeks in a newspaper of general circulation in the area proposed to be
annexed, with the first publication of such notice to be at least thirty days prior to the date of the
hearing. The Town Clerk shall further provide notice to the Clerk of the Board of County
Commissioners of Summit County, the Summit County Attorney, and to any special district or
school district having territory within the area proposed to be annexed, in the manner and within
the time provided in Section 31-12-108(2), C.R.S.

Section 4. This resolution shall become effective upon its adoption.

RESOLUTION APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 27" DAY OF September 2022.
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ATTEST:

TOWN OF BRECKENRIDGE

Helen Cospolich, Town Clerk

APPROVED IN FORM

Town Attorney

Date

Eric Mamula, Mayor
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August 26, 2022 BRIAN J. CONNOLLY
303 575 7589
BCONNOLLY@OTTENJOHNSON.COM

VIA E-MAIL — JULIAP@TOWNOFBRECKENRIDGE.COM

Attn: Julia Puester
Assistant Director %
Community Development/Planning \&

Town Hall %} % %9

150 Ski Hill Road | gr@‘ﬂ—
P.O. Box 168 o T Q%
Breckenridge, Colorado 80424 N 9\66\(\6?\}“'
\ \N“ O?:\\\\\\\GO
Re:  Development Agreement % O e\
Dear Julia:

As you are aware, our firm represents BGV Entrada Partners, LLC (“BGV”) in its applications for the
annexation and zoning of certain property into the Town of Breckenridge (the “Town”). BGV intends to build
an Employee Housing project on that property (the “Project”) once it is annexed and zoned, and once a
development permit has been approved. As part of the annexation application, we are submitting an annexation
and development agreement (the “Development Agreement”) in accordance with Title 9, Chapter 9 of the
Breckenridge Town Code (the “Town Code”). Pursuant to Section 9-9-9 of the Town Code, we have included
with our application for annexation proof of ownership and a letter of authorization/statement of consent,
satisfying requirements in Sections 9-9-9:A-C of the Town Code. We understand that the Town interprets
Sections 9-9-9:D and 9-9-9:E of the Town Code to require us to describe the benefits of the Projects and
commitments of BGV, and we provide this letter to satisfy those requirements.

As set forth in Article V of the Development Agreement, the Project will provide two primary public benefits:
deed-restricted Employee Housing and Public Improvements. In sum, in its provision of Employee Housing,
BGV commits to the following prior to the issuance of any certificate of occupancy for the Project:

e  Create occupancy and deed restrictions applicable to each Unit (as that term is defined in the
Development Agreement) in accordance with Section 9-1-19-24A:H of the Town Code, in a form of
covenant acceptable to the Town;

o Set monthly rent for each Unit at a cost of no more than $2.50 per square foot, adjusted for inflation
that has occurred since January 1, 2022 in accordance with the Denver Metropolitan Area consumer
price index as determined by the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics, which rent shall include utilities such
as gas and electric service (“Rent”);

e Increase the Rent by no more than three percent (3%) annually; and

950 SEVENTEENTH STREET SUITE 1600 DENVER COLORADO 80202 P 303.825.8400 F 303.825.6525

OTTENJOHNSON.COM
2474420.1
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Town of Breckenridge 5

P.O. Box 168, Breckenridge, Colorado 80424
Class A Application Fees:
$6,730 plus $130.00 / Single Family Equivalent (SFE)
$262.50 Enginecring Review Fee

PROJECT BGV Workforce Housing PL-2022-

PROPERTY OWNER BGV Partners Entrada, LLC - Michael Dudick, Manager
MAILING ADDRESS PO Box 6879, Breckenridge, CO 80424 PHONE No. 970-453-8883

EMAIL ADDRESs MAD@breckenridgegrandvacations.com

APPLICANT/AGENT Brian Connolly, Otten Johnson Robinson Neff + Ragonetti PHONE No. 303-575-7589
if other than Owner

STREET ADDRESS OF PROPERTY 11030 Highway 9, Breckenridge, CO 80424

LEGAL DESCRIPTION Tract A2, Entrada at Breckenridge PRESENT USE OF PROPERTY vacant

WRITE A SHORT DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSAL/SUBMITTAL:

Annexation and Development Agreement associated with the annexation request of Tract A2, Entrada at
Breckenridge into the Town of Breckenridge. The property is located on the northeast corner of Highway 9
and Huron Road/CR 450 and is approximately 1.41 acres in size.

SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS: Copies (as noted) of any maps, drawings or materials needed to adequately describe th
proposal. All drawings and maps shall be to scale. Please include:
O Requirements per Municipal Annexation Act of 1965 (§§ 31-12-101 — 31-12-123)

U Draft Annexation Agreement

By submitting this application, applicant consents to the Town’s staff and elected and appointed officials entering applicant’s
property for purposes related to the review of this application.

Property Owner's Signature W Date 2// 2k /2’ s

e Date8/26/2022

Applicant/Agent's Signature

Staff Signature Date

ANNEXATION

Application



ANNEXATION PETITION
TRACT A2, ENTRADA AT BRECKENRIDGE RECEIVED

Rinicrinal ¢ N1/t §
Municipal oervice:

TO: THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF BRECKENRIDGE, COLORADO

The undersigned (“Petitioner”), in accordance with the Municipal Annexation Act of 1965 as set
forth in C.R.S. § 31-12-101, ef seq., as amended and as in effect on the submission date set forth
below (the “Annexation Act”), hereby petitions the Town Council of the Town of Breckenridge,
Colorado (the “Council”) to annex to the Town of Breckenridge (the “Town”) certain
unincorporated real property located in the County of Summit, State of Colorado, which property
is more particularly described on Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference

(the “Property™).

As part of this petition, the Petitioner states to the Council that:

1. It is desirable and necessary that the Property be annexed to the Town.

2. The requirements of Sections 31-12-104 and 31-12-105 of the Annexation Act exist
or have been met in that:

a.

2460199.3

Not less than one-sixth of the perimeter of the Property proposed to be
annexed is contiguous with the Town;

A community of interest exists between the Property and the Town;
The Property is urban or will be urbanized in the near future;

The Propetty is integrated with or is capable of being integrated with the
Town;

In establishing the boundaries of the Property, no land which is held in
identical ownership, whether consisting of one tract or parcel of real estate
or two or more contiguous tracts or parcels of real estate:

@) is being divided into separate parts or parcels without the written
consent of the landowner or landowners thereof, unless such tracts
or parcels are separated by a dedicated street, road, or other public
way;

(i)  comprises twenty acres or more (which, together with the buildings
and improvements situated thereon, has an assessed value in excess
of two hundred thousand dollars ($200,000.00) for ad valorem tax
purposes for the year next preceding the annexation), and has been
included within the Property to be annexed without the written
consent of the landowner or landowners;
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k.

No annexation proceedings have been commenced for any portion of the
Property for the annexation of such Property to another municipality;

The annexation of the Property will not result in the detachment of area
from any school district;

The annexation of the Property will not have the effect of extending the
boundary of the Town more than three miles in any direction from any point
of the boundary of the Town in any one year;

The Property is approximately 1.718 acres in total area;

Pursuant to Section 31-12-105(1)(e) of the Annexation Act, prior to
completion of the annexation of the Property, a plan will be in place that
generally describes the proposed location, character, and extent of streets,
subways, bridges, waterways, waterfronts, parkways, playgrounds, squares,
patks, aviation fields, other public ways, grounds, open spaces, public
utilities, and terminals for water, light, sanitation, transportation, and power
to be provided by the Town; and the proposed land uses for the area; such
plan to be updated at least once annually;

In establishing the boundary of the Property, if a portion of a platted street
or alley is to be annexed, the entire width of the street or alley has been
included within the Property to be annexed, and reasonable access will not
be denied to any landowners, owners of any easement, or the owners of any
franchise adjoining any platted street or alley which is to be annexed to the
Town, but is not bounded on both sides by the Town; and

The proposed annexation is less than ten acres, and therefore an annexation
impact report is not required pursuant to Section 31-12-108.5 of the
Annexation Act.

Petitioner comprises more than fifty percent (50%) of the landowners in the
Property and owns more than fifty percent (50%) of the Property, exclusive of
public streets and alleys and any land owned by the Town, and has signed this
petition and hereby petitions for annexation of such Property to the Town. The
legal description of the portion of the Property owned by each Petitioner is set forth
on Exhibit B attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.

The Property is not presently a part of any incorporated city, city and county, or
town; nor have any proceedings been commenced for incorporation or annexation
of an area that is part or all of the Property; nor has any election for annexation of
the Property or substantially the same territory to the Town been held within the
twelve (12) months immediately preceding the filing of this Petition.
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Accompanying this petition are four copies of an annexation map containing the
following information:

a.

b.

A written legal description of the boundaries of the Property;
A map showing the boundary of the Property;

Within the annexation boundary map, a showing of the location of each
ownership tract in unplatted land and, if part or all of the area is platted, the
boundaries and the plat numbers of plots or of lots and blocks; and

Next to the boundary of the Property, a drawing of the contiguous boundary
of the Town and the contiguous boundary of any other municipality abutting
the Property, and a showing of the dimensions of such contiguous
boundaries.

Upon the annexation ordinance becoming effective, all of the Property will become
subject to all ordinances, resolutions, rules, and regulations of the Town, except for
general property taxes of the Town, which shall become effective on January 1 of
the next succeeding year following adoption of the annexation ordinance.

Petitioner has filed this petition subject to, and the consent to annexation of the
Property to the Town is conditioned upon, satisfaction of the following conditions,
any one or more of which may be waived by Petitioner in Petitioner’s sole
discretion:

a,

Concurrently with the Town’s approval of annexation of the Property,
Petitioner requests that the Town (i) approve zoning for the Property that is
substantially consistent with the request for zoning that Petitioner submits
in connection with this petition; and (ii) execute an annexation agreement
on terms and conditions mutually acceptable to Petitioner and the Town (the
“Annexation Agreement”) which establishes the terms and conditions under
which Petitioner has agreed to annex the Property to the Town, which
further shall include vested rights for the Property for a term specified in
the Annexation Agreement, pursuant to C.R.S. § 24-68-101, ef seq., as
amended.

Petitioner hereby reserves for itself the sole, exclusive and unilateral right
to withdraw this petition by so notifying the Clerk of the Town in writing at
any point prior to the latest to occur of: (i) the latest final, non-appealable
approval of the final ordinance(s) or other final approval(s) approving
(A) annexation of the Property; (B) zoning of the Property; and (C) the
Annexation Agreement as requested by this petition; (ii) final, non-
appealable resolution of any “Legal Challenge” (defined below); or (iii) any
later date as may be set forth in the Annexation Agreement. For purposes
of this petition, “Legal Challenge” means either: (i) any third party
commences any legal proceeding or other action that directly or indirectly
challenges the annexation of the Property, the Annexation Agreement, the

3
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approved zoning of the Property or any of the Town’s ordinances,
resolutions or other approvals approving any of the foregoing; or (ii) any
third party submits a petition for a referendum seeking to reverse or nullify
any of such ordinances.

C. Prior to expiration of the period described in the foregoing subparagraph (b)
without Petitioner having withdrawn the petition, neither Petitioner nor the
Town shall cause or permit the occurrence of the conditions to effectiveness
of the annexation as set forth in CRS 31-12-113(2)(b).

THEREFORE, Petitioner requests that the Council complete and approve the annexation
of the Property to the Town pursuant to the provisions of the Annexation Act.

Respectfully submitted this 271 day of AveusT , 2022,

PETITIONER:

BGYV Partners Entrada LLC,
a Colorado limited liability company

By: M}Q —
Name: Michael A. Dudick
Title: Manager

Date of Signature: August 26, 2022

Address:

100 S. Main Street, Breckenridge, CO 80424
Street Number, Street Name, City, State and Zip Code

Is Petitioner a resident of the Property?: No.

NOTARY CERTIFICATE
STATE OF ( plovads )
) ) ss.
COUNTY OF _Symm i+ )

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 2l day of
ﬁuq Ls—+ , 2022 by Mithae C as Mr\nm}' 4 of BGV Partners
Entrada LLC, a Colorado limited liability company.

Witness my hand and official seal.
My commission expires on: ‘%‘191 [202t

(SEAL) e Pt bk
Notary Public ()

AUBREE WAGNER
NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF COLORADO
Notary ID #20224016306
My Commisslon Explres 4/22/2026

2460199.3
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EXHIBIT A
LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY

TRACT A2, ENTRADA AT BRECKENRIDGE, A REPLAT OF TRACTS Al, Bl & C,
ENTRADA AT BRECKENRIDGE, SUMMIT COUNTY, COLORADO ACCORDING TO THE
PLAT RECORDED UNDER RECEPTION NO. 1146781,

CONTAINING A TOTAL OF 61,655 SQUARE FEET OR 1.415 ACRES.

TRACT D, ENTRADA AT BRECKENRIDGE, A REPLAT OF TRACTS Al, Bl & C,
ENTRADA AT BRECKENRIDGE, SUMMIT COUNTY, COLORADO ACCORDING TO THE
PLAT RECORDED UNDER RECEPTION NO. 1146781,

CONTAINING A TOTAL OF 255 SQUARE FEET OR 0.006 ACRE.

A PORTION OF TRACT C, ENTRADA AT BRECKENRIDGE, A REPLAT OF TRACTS Al,
B1 & C, ENTRADA AT BRECKENRIDGE, SUMMIT COUNTY, COLORADO ACCORDING
TO THE PLAT RECORDED UNDER RECEPTION NO. 1146781, BEING MORE
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHEAST PROPERTY CORNER OF TRACT A2, ENTRADA AT
BRECKENRIDGE; THENCE S21°49'20"W A DISTANCE OF 14.17 FEET; THENCE
N77°04'50"W A DISTANCE OF 211.57 FEET; THENCE 25.30 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF
A CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A RADIUS OF 14.00 FEET, A CENTRAL ANGLE OF
103°32'57" AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS N51°08'42"E 22.00 FEET DISTANT; THENCE
S77°04'S0"E A DISTANCE OF 149.62 FEET; THENCE 12.24 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF A
CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A RADIUS OF 62.00 FEET, A CENTRAL ANGLE OF
11°18'36". AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS S71°25'32"E 12.22 FEET DISTANT; THENCE
$65°46'14"E A DISTANCE OF 19.70 FEET; THENCE 9.61 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF A
CURVE TO THE LEFT HAVING A RADIUS OF 48.00 FEET, A CENTRAL ANGLE OF
11°28'05" AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS S71°30'16"E 9.59 FEET DISTANT; THENCE
S77°04'50"E A DISTANCE OF 20.77 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, CONTAINING
4,047 SQUARE FEET, OR 0.093 ACRE MORE OR LESS.

A PORTION OF HURON ROAD, CO. RD. NO. 450, SUMMIT COUNTY, COLORADO,
BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHEAST PROPERTY CORNER OF TRACT A2, ENTRADA
AT BRECKENRIDGE; THENCE $21°4920"W A DISTANCE OF 14.17 FEET TO THE POINT
OF BEGINNING; THENCE S21°4920"W A DISTANCE OF 43.73 FEET; THENCE
N77°04'50"W A DISTANCE OF 189.05 FEET; THENCE N18°50'53"W A DISTANCE OF 50.82
FEET; THENCE N77°04'50"W A DISTANCE OF 211.57 FEET TO THE POINT OF
BEGINNING, CONTAINING 8,891 SQUARE FEET OR 0.204 ACRE MORE OR LESS.

2:460199.3
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EXHIBIT B
LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY OWNED BY PETITIONER

TRACT A2, ENTRADA AT BRECKENRIDGE, A REPLAT OF TRACTS Al, Bl & C,
ENTRADA AT BRECKENRIDGE, SUMMIT COUNTY, COLORADO ACCORDING TO THE
PLAT RECORDED UNDER RECEPTION NO. 1146781.

CONTAINING A TOTAL OF 61,655 SQUARE FEET OR 1.415 ACRES.

B-1

2460199.3
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AFFIDAVIT OF CIRCULATOR

The undersigned, being of lawful age, who being first duly sworn upon oath deposes and
says:

That he was the circulator of the foregoing Annexation Petition of lands to the Town of
Breckenridge, Colorado, consisting of 7 pages, including this page and that each signature
thereon was witnessed by your affiant and is the true signature of the person whose name it
purports to be.

ik

Samuel Thomas Dudick, Circulator

ACKNOWLEDGMENT
STATE OF _(dlovedo )

‘ ) ss.
COUNTY OF _ Suramit )

The above and foregoing Affidavit of Circulator was subscribed and sworn to before me
this 21 day of QVf}“ P , 2022,

Witness my hand and official seal.
My commission expires on: 4 /Qa”l 202 lo

(SEAL) /g/ ugu\_ gt
Notary Public Q

AUBREE WAGNER |60 S, pApun Streat
NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF COLORADO Ad Crl aaa
Notary ID #20224016306 Tess
My Commisston Explres 4/22/2026

EM a7 r”)r’f&((@{j( Lo K0 Y4

Affidavit of Circulator of

Annexation Petition
2460199.3
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SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED

Recording requested by
and when recorded please retfurn to;

BGV Partners Entrada LLC
P.O. Box 6879 Breckenridge, CO 80424
Attention: Graham Frank

THIS SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED is made this 13" day of April, 2022, by SPRING
CREEK INTEREST, LLC, a Colorado limited liability company (“Grantor”), in favor of BGV
PARTNERS ENTRADA LLC, a Colorado limited liability company (“Grantee”), which has an
office at 100 S. Main Street, Breckentidge, CO 80424,

WITNESSETH, that Grantor, for and in consideration of Ten and No/100 Dollars ($10.00)
and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby
acknowledged, has granted, bargained, sold and conveyed, and by these presents does grant,
bargain, sell, convey and confirm, unto Grantee, its successors and assigns forever, all the real
property, together with improvements, located in the County of Summit, State of Colorado, more
particularly desctibed on Exhibit 1, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference (the

“Property”);

TOGETHER with all and singular the hereditaments and appurtenances thereto belonging,
or in anywise appertaining, and the reversion and reversions, remainder and remainders, rents,
issues and profits thereof, and all the estate, right, title, interest, claim and demand whatsoever of
Grantor, either in law or equity, of, in and to the Property, including, without limitation, the coal,
oil, gas and related rights, mineral and mineral tights, ditch and ditch rights, drain and drainage
rights, and reservoir and reservoir rights, if any, but excluding water, water rights, well and well
rights owned by Seller, if any;

The Grantor shall and will WARRANT AND FOREVER DEFEND the above-bargained premises
in the quiet and peaceable possession of Grantee, its successors and assigns, against all and every
person or persons claiming the whole or any part thereof BY, THROUGH OR UNDER Grantor,
subject only to the “Statutory Exceptions” as defined in §38-30-113(5)(a), CR.S.

[Signature Page Immediately Follows]
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Exhibit 1 to Deed

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

TRACT A2, A REPLAT OF LOTS Al, Bl AND C, ENTRADA AT BRECKENRIDGE,
ACCORDING TO THE PLAT FILED JULY 24, 2017 UNDER RECEPTION NO. 1146781,
COUNTY OF SUMMIT, STATE OF COLORADO.

SWD Bntrada 04-13-22.docx
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor has caused its name to be hereunto subscribed on the
day and year first above written.

GRANTOR:

SPRING CREEK INTEREST, LLC, a
Colorado limited liability company

‘T\
By S 2 5 o £

Martin V. Getz, Manager C)

STATEOF | RXUS )
S,
county oF = Mg Y\@W‘"y

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this f\ \ B(IQ day of April, 2022,
by Martin V. Gelz, as Manager of Spring Creek Interest, LLC, a Colorado limited liability

company.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.,
My commission expires: " \[17/20 l@ &\

H"’
L
e

Notary\isu‘ﬁli?;/ v

PUEEST
T TR

LT S W
’ y c:h:shua Setna
y Commission Expl
112712026 "o
Notary ID
133655721

PGPy =

SWD Entrada 04-13-22.doex
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GRANT OF EASEMENTS AND COVENANTS

THIS GRANT OF EASEMENTS AND COVENANTS (“Grant™) is made this 13" day of April,
2022 by and between BGV PARTNERS ENTRADA LLC, a Colorado limited liability company
(“Grantor”) and CR 450 HOLDINGS, LLC, a Colorado limited liability company (“Grantee”).

RECITALS

A. Grantor is the sole owner in fee simple of certain real property in Summit County,
Colorado described as:

TRACT A2, A REPLAT OF LOTS Al, Bl AND C, ENTRADA AT
BRECKENRIDGE, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT FILED JULY 24, 2017
UNDER RECEPTION NO. 1146781, COUNTY OF SUMMIT, STATE OF
COLORADO,

hereinafter “Tract A2” or the “Burdened Property.”

B. Grantee is the sole owner in fee simple of certain real property in Summit County,
Colorado described as:

TRACT B2, A REPLAT OF LOTS Al, Bl AND C, ENTRADA AT
BRECKENRIDGE, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT FILED JULY 24, 2017
UNDER RECEPTION NO. 1146781, COUNTY OF SUMMIT, STATE OF
COLORADO,

hereinafter “Tract B2” or the “Benefitted Property.”

C. Grantor purchased Tract A2 from Spring Creek Interest, LLC, a Colorado limited liability
company (“Spring Creek”), an entity affiliated with Grantee, under the terms of the Purchase and
Sale Agreement dated March 14, 2022, by and between Spring Creek, as Seller, and Grantor, as
Buyer, and as part of the consideration given to Spring Creek for the purchase, agreed to grant
certain easements and covenants for the benefit of Tract B2.

D. The Subdivision Exemption Plat of a Replat of Tracts Al and Bl and C, Entrada at
Breckenridge, recorded on July 24, 2017 at Reception No. 1146781 with the Summit County
Clerk and Recorder shall hereinafter be referred to as the “Plat.”

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above and the mutual covenants, terms, conditions,
and restrictions contained herein and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the following grants, agreements, covenants, and
restrictions are made:
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EASEMENTS

1. Grant of Easements. The Grantor hereby grants to the Grantee, its successors and
assigns, the following perpetual easements:

(a) Sign Utility Easement. A non-exclusive twenty (20) foot easement for the
operation, maintenance, repair, and replacement of existing water lines and utilities from Tract
B2 to the “10° x 20’ Sign Easement” on Tract A2 as reflected on the Plat (the “Existing Sign
Easement”) and surrounding landscaping to and for the benefit of Tract B2 in the same location
as the twenty (20) foot private sewer easement crossing Tract A2 as reflected on the Plat (the
“Sign Utility Easement”);

(b)  Sign Landscaping Easement. An exclusive easement surrounding the
Existing Sign Easement to maintain and replace, if necessary, the landscaping currently existing
thereon, as depicted on Exhibit A, attached and incorporated herein by reference, and to plant
new or additional landscaping of a similar nature and type, as agreed upon by Grantor and
Grantee, or as otherwise mandated by any governmental entity (the “Sign Landscaping
Easement”). Specifically, the Sign Landscaping Easement shall be as large as required to
maintain landscaping around the sign within the Existing Sign Easement (the “Sign”) under the
Entrada at Breckenridge Planned Unit Development Designation (the “Entrada PUD”) or the
Entrada at Breckenridge Planned Unit Development (PUD) Sign Program (the “Entrada PUD
Sign Program”) and any future modifications to these documents by the Grantor or Grantee, or as
otherwise mandated by any government authority to ensure that Grantee is in compliance with all
requirements but shall, at a minimum, extend ten (10) feet beyond the Existing Sign Easement in
all directions;

(¢)  Sign Access Easement. A non-exclusive easement for access from Tract
B2 over, through and across Tract A2 to the Existing Sign Easement, the Sign Utility Easement
and the Sign Landscaping Easement for maintenance and landscaping purposes, including, but
not limited to, pedestrian and vehicular easement necessary to maintain or replace signage,
irrigation, lighting or other utility systems, and/or landscaping as reasonably determined by
Grantee and/or as required by any government entity, under the Entrada PUD Sign Program or
the Entrada PUD, and/or the Summit County sign permit for the Tenant Directory Sign located
on or near the Existing Sign Easement (the “Sign Access Easement”);

(d)  Gate Easement. An exclusive easement to operate, maintain, repair and
replace the existing metal gate and associated keypad for the southwestern entrance to Tract B2,
the location of which is depicted on Exhibit A attached hereto, and the electrical power lines
necessary for the gate (collectively, the “Gate Easement”). The Gate Easement shall include the
right by Grantee at its sole discretion to replace the existing gate with a new gate of similar size
and character and the right to place on the Burdened Property any keypad or other access or
security devices needed to operate the gate, which devices shall be located in a manner as to
minimize the impact on the Burdened Property while maintaining functionality for Grantee.
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Grantor hereby acknowledges that the Gate Easement may not be relocated without prior
approval of Grantee; and

(¢)  Access Easement. Grantee shall have a non-exclusive general vehicular
easement over, across and through Tract A2 that follows the flow of traffic established under
Grantor’s development plan for Tract B2 such that the Benefitted Property has access across
Tract A to Colorado State Highway No. 9 and Huron Road, County Road No. 450, from both the
northwest corner of Tract B2 and the southwest corner of Tract B2.

(f) Fence Access Easement. A non-exclusive easement for access over, through
and across Tract A2 to the wood fence on the property line between Tracts A2 and Tract B2
shown on attached Exhibit A (the “Fence”) for maintenance purposes, including, but not limited
to, pedestrian and vehicular access as necessary to maintain, repair or replace the Fence, with all
costs to be borne by Grantee, with vehicular access to be limited to paved areas once Tract A2 is
developed.

GRANTOR COVENANTS

2. Covenants of Grantor. Grantor hereby agrees to be bound by the following
representations and covenants for the benefit of Tract B2:

(a)  Noninterference with Use and Rights of the Benefitted Property.
Development of Tract A2, modifications to the Entrada PUD Sign Program or CDOT Access
Permit and any related improvements or agreements, or any other modifications to existing and
future agreements affecting both Tract A2 and Tract B2, and the future annexation and
development agreements with the Town of Breckenridge, or any other use of Tract A2 shall not
affect the use or rights of Tract B2 as they currently exist as of the date of this Grant;

(b)  Modification of Grantee’s Sewer Connection and Easement. In
conjunction with the development of Tract A2, Grantor shall provide a new connection for
Grantee’s sewer line serving Tract B2 that meets all governmental requirements, with all costs to
be borne by Grantor. Grantor further agrees that any sewer line connection work shall be
undertaken in an expeditious manner and in such a way as to minimize the inconvenience to and
interruption of sewer services for Grantee. If the location of the connection and/or Grantee’s
sewer line as relocated lies outside of the twenty (20) foot private sewer easement crossing Tract
A2 as shown on the Plat (the “Sewer Easement™), Grantor will provide a new or expanded sewer
easement for the sewer line connection and line to Tract B2 that meets governmental
requirements and bear all costs associated with such obligation;

(¢)  Government Mandated Modification or Alteration of the Easements. In
the event any governmental authority requires the relocation or modification of any of the
casements granted herein or reflected on the Plat and for the benefit of the Benefitted Property
(collectively, the “Easements”) or relocation of the bus stop, by, among other means,
condemning a portion of the Burdened Property or through any approval process, including
without limitation modification of the existing agreements with the Town of Breckenridge

3
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concerning the Burdened Property or any existing approvals or permits issued by Summit
County Government, Grantor shall, at its sole cost, provide substitute easements of same size and
quality and as close to the location of the Easements as they currently exist, reconnect any and all
utilities, water, and sewer for the Benefitted Property and the Sign and landscaping affected by
this relocation or modification in as expeditious a manner as possible, ensure the Sign has the
same visibility from both directions of Highway 9 and is not blocked by new landscaping,
improvements or other conditions, and will install the Sign in its new location and replace any
landscaping surrounding the Sign as required for Grantee to meet the requirements of the Entrada
PUD Sign Program, Any responsibility for and costs associated with government mandated
modification of the Entrada PUD Sign Program or any other existing agreements governing the
sign as a result of development of the Burdened Property shall be borne by the Grantor.

(d) Landscaping and Lighting between Properties. Grantor shall remove the
Jandscaping and lighting existing along the eastern border of Tract A2 as shown on attached
Exhibit A, and associated irrigation and power lines, within 90 days of the date of this Grant.

FURTHER, the parties hereto mutually covenant and agree as follows:

3. Reserved Rights, Grantor reserves to itself, and to its personal representatives,
heirs, successors, and assigns, all rights accruing from its ownership of the Burdened Property,
including, without limitation, the right to engage in or permit or invite others to engage in all
uses of the Burdened Property that are not expressly prohibited herein and are not inconsistent
with the purposes of this Grant.

4, Enforcement. Grantee shall have the right to prevent and correct or require
correction of violations of the terms of this Grant. Grantee may enter the Burdened Property for
the purpose of inspecting for violations. If Grantee finds what it believes is a violation, Grantee
shall immediately notify Grantor in writing of the nature of the alleged violation. Upon receipt
of such written notice, Grantor shall either (a) restore the Burdened Premises to its condition
prior to the violation or (b) provide a written explanation to Grantee of the reason why the
alleged violation should be permitted. If the condition described in clause (b) above occurs, both
parties agree to meet as soon as possible to resolve this difference. If a resolution of this
difference cannot be achieved at the meeting, both parties agree to meet with a mutually
acceptable mediator to attempt to resolve the dispute. Grantor shall discontinue any activity
which could increase or expand the alleged violation during the mediation process. Should
mediation fail to resolve the dispute within forty-five (45) days, Grantee may, at its discretion,
take appropriate legal action, Notwithstanding any agreement to meet or mediate hereunder,
when, in Grantee’s opinion, an ongoing or imminent violation could irreversibly diminish or
impair Grantee’s rights, Grantee may, at its discretion take appropriate legal action. If a court
with jurisdiction determines that a violation is imminent, exists, or has occurred, Grantee may
get an injunction to stop it, temporarily or permanently. A court may also issue an injunction to
require Grantor to restore the Burdened Premises to its condition prior to the violation.

5. Costs of Enforcement. Any costs incurred by Grantee in enforcing the terms of
this Grant against Grantor, including, without limitation, costs of suit and attorneys’ fees, and

4
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any costs of restoration necessitated by Grantor’s violation of the terms of this Grant shall be
borne by Grantor. If Grantor prevails in any action to enforce the terms of this Grant, Grantor’s
costs of suit, including, without limitation, attorneys’ fees, shall be borne by Grantee.

6. Grantee’s Discretion. Enforcement of the terms of this Grant shall be at the
discretion of Grantee, and any forbearance by Grantee to exercise its rights under this Grant, in
the event of any breach of any term of this Grant by Grantor shall not be deemed or construed to
be a waiver by Grantee of such term or of any subsequent breach of the same or any other term
of this Grant or of any of Grantee’s rights under this Grant. No delay or omission by Grantee in
the exercise of any right or remedy upon any breach by Grantor, shall impair such right or
remedy or be construed as a waiver.

7. Waiver of Certain Defenses. Grantor hereby waives any defense of laches,
estoppel, or prescription.

8. Costs and Liabilities. Grantor retains all responsibilities and shall bear all costs
and liabilities of any kind related to the ownership, operation, upkeep, and maintenance of the
Burdened Property, including the maintenance of adequate comprehensive general liability
insurance coverage.

9. Subsequent Transfers. Grantor agrees to incorporate by reference the terms of
this Grant in any deed or other legal instrument by which it divests itself of any interest in all or a
portion of the Burdened Property, including, without limitation, a leasehold interest. The failure
of Grantor to perform any act required by this paragraph shall not impair the validity of this
Grant or limit its enforceability in any way.

10.  Notices. Any notice, demand, request, consent, approval, or communication that
either party desires or is required to give to the other shall be in writing and must be provided by
one of the following methods: (i) certified mail in the United States mail, postage prepaid, return
receipt requested, or Federal Express to the address of Grantor or Grantee set forth below; (ii) by
hand or other in-person delivery to the Grantor or Grantee; or (iii) via email to the email
address(es) set forth below. Notice via email shall be deemed to have been received when the
recipient, by an email, acknowledges having received or otherwise responds to the notice email.
Notice shalt be provided as follows:

To Grantor:

BGV Partners Entrada LLC

100 S. Main Street

P.O. Box 6879 Breckenridge, CO 80424

Attention; Graham Frank and Nick Doran

Telephone: (303) 517-0419

Email: gfrank@breckenridgegrandvacations.com
ndoran@breckenridgesrandvacations.com
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To Grantee:

CR 450 Holdings, LLC

137 Lake View Circle
Montgomery, TX 77356-9028
Attn: Martin V. Getz

Email; mveetz@yahoo.com

or to such other address as either party from time to time shall designate by written notice to the
other.

11.  Recordation. This Grant shall be recorded by Grantor in the records of the
Summit County, Colorado Clerk and Recorder within five (5) days of the date of execution by all
parties.

12.  Plat Easements. Nothing in this Grant affects, restricts or modifies the easements
and rights established for the benefit of Tract B2 by the dedications on the Plat over, under,
through, and across Tract A2, which easements and rights (the “Plat Easements™”) cannot be
changed without the consent of the owner of Tract B2. The Easements granted hereunder
provide additional rights for the Benefitted Property beyond than those established by the Plat.
For ease of reference only, and without having any bearing on the easements as established by
the Plat, the Plat Easements are shown on Exhibit A.

13. General Provisions.

(a) Controlling Law. The interpretation and performance of this Grant shall
be governed by the laws of the State of Colorado.

(b)  Liberal Construction. Any general rule of construction to the contrary
notwithstanding, this Grant shall be liberally construed to effect the purpose of this Grant. If any
provision in this instrument is found to be ambiguous, an interpretation consistent with the
purpose of this Grant that would render the provision valid shall be favored over any
interpretation that would render it invalid. Both parties acknowledge having had the opportunity
to participate in the drafting of this Grant and, therefore, this Grant shall not be construed against
either party based upon authorship.

(c) Severability. If any provision of this Grant, or the application thereof to
any person or circumstance, is found to be invalid, the remainder of the provisions of this Grant,
or the application of such provision to persons or circumstances other than those as to which it
found to be invalid, as the case may be, shall not be affected thereby.

(d)  Entire_Agreement. This Grant sets forth the entire agreement of the
parties with respect to the matters addressed herein and supersedes all prior discussions,
negotiations, understandings, or agreements relating to the Grant, all of which are merged herein.
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(¢)  No Forfeiture. Nothing contained herein will result in a forfeiture or
reversion of Grantor’s title in any respect.

® Successors. The covenants, terms, conditions, and restrictions of this
Grant shall be binding upon, and inure to the benefit of, the parties hereto and their respective
personal representatives, heirs, successors, and assigns and shall continue as a servitude running
in perpetuity with the Burdened Property in favor of the Benefitted Property.

(g)  Captions. The captions in this instrument have been inserted solely for
convenience or reference and are not a part of this instrument and shall have no effect upon
construction or interpretation.

(h)  Amendment. If the circumstances arise under which an amendment to or
modification of this instrument would be appropriate, Grantor and Grantee are free to jointly
amend this Grant, provided that any amendment must be in writing, signed by both parties and
recorded in the records of the Clerk and Recorder of Summit County, Colorado.

[Signature Pages Follow]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor and Grantee have executed this Grant of Easements and
Covenants as of the day and year first above written.

GRANTOR:

BGV PARTNERS ENTRADA LLC,
a Colorado limited liability company

By: / M/ }/Q -

Name: Y/ !‘Qxfi/é%'d

Title: Hlomed—

STATEOF ( ¢leva ;\ ©)

S8,
COUNTY OF< \LLW\WLL {; )

=
The for egomg instrument has been acknowledged before me this l ) day of f\v}”)( § \ ,
2022 by "\ chaed K Ddl as O\ Oy of BGV Partners Entrada LLC, Grantor.

WITNESS my hand and ofﬁ01a1 seal e
My commission expires: / /5.2 y e
& g
/ yr’y A
: o s VR o
DEBBIE L NEELY fflﬁotary Public o i
NOTARY PUBLIC { e /i
‘“TATE OF COLORADO L g
NOTARY ID 18944017 : N

My Cormiaslon Explras December 6, 2022
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STATEOF *~ | 05 )

) ss.

COUNTY OF _Amg@ww /

GRANTEE:

CR 450 HOLDINGS, LLC, a Colorado
limited liability company

,,/—“"’”:>

W&%

Ma1t1nV Getz, Manz/ er

> o
The foregoing instrument has been acknowledged before me this May of E( Prj l R
2022 by Martin V. Getz as Manager of CR 450 HOLDINGS, LLC, Grantee.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.
My commission expires: y\ya

/’”W

Notary Public

oA AT

et r e i PSR

= L o

" cJoshua Serna

y Commission E
112712026 " 1S
Notary ID ]
133555721

69



EXHIBIT A

[See attached Improvement Location Certificate for Tract A2, Entrada at Breckenridge, dated
April 5, 2022, completed by Range West Inc.]
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70



el
I
riva
225
i

R

6107 . s
3 ST HTTID HONT [ s

QHONT | INIYTE GHOHD] YiTIT SHayy | HIONTT

_ TIRVL AT ' /

150

| Elalslaleivle]

. ‘aUoN 3, o GIYE S0 LUV ANY DNINIONE 4O INSS08D
ININFSYZ ANY S0 NOIS YO FONFOAT LTINS TN, VAL ONY “GLUYION] SY LdZKT SISUHGYS
SHINGRDY ANY NG SINGHGACHSN A8 SISINTHd OFGRIISIT FHL HOoN SINIWHOYORXINT ON 1Y Je3Hl
LviL NHOHS SV LLFIXT LY IHL HO SHYYONAOE JHE NHIM ATRIUNG Y SNOUIINNGD ALITLN Le3XT
TTOr ¥ WSV U S MO BOSVe 2530 SACEY FHL MO ML LVHE AT dGHLES T

- RINIT LNGHGAOHN TN EHIO HO ONITUNE g SO LNINHSIIGVIST FHL KO
NO? GUTEY 3T 0L 10N SF L1 LYHI ONY YT AZNMNS INSHIACSIN 80 LY Td ASAYAS OMYT ¥ LON, 514 LKL

. saco curp . . . Lo ZLID ALHYH
. %D SFTE X WO QTN LTS SYH LVOLALUTZ NOUVIOT LNGIEAOKN SIHL LYK ASUKID ABTEZH |
. xxtlbﬁlxwﬁﬁ »k Yot NOUVIVITS - oL ‘. N 7
o NIz . - . e ESLL o TV SECLIATE
90685 : - ) - - 08,

M

o Y gy .

= o,
- =l s “boor=s i AT B s . . W 7oz B
: v sizoe B eS| B Locinzs = : ; s 2 3 . e, zﬁ 2 g LIV
Wil =5 7 et Rt e e INGHISVT BONVICLATYIY/ ITEUS MONS £ & T Py e 131, _ 3,06 $OLLS: ¥ N - .
v . T e
RE

SALINVIG HNOSL HIM F3 FANHSS - \w .

R i P>,
- X g ath oo : ,
- —— e / \ 4 L HIUITNVIT NNNEL R I NISSY )
A N /A\/ © MUINIT HNIML LM FYL INI L]
IS LHIAT s -

avay, #F oo .
(TIGOTTY) VD JUSYIS ¥ SYERS ONOS o
(42647 ST) VO JUSYIS P HYEI ONOOS | ®

: : ’ 2 . v S\ | (6065 ST) YO OUSYTS P HYEIY ANNO7 T .
. . . ’ . ) 3 C - . Mﬂ W, (181937} VO TIUS ¥ YVEIY ONIOS .
. AL : o\ F A o o ks /,,,a (26252 STd) 0 JUSYTS P ¥VETyY ONOT &
) ) . . . . : . : . . . . o . , : . \ /ﬂ (Z10Z ONnod SINGANOR) ~— ONT937
. ; ) R . . sne o } R SR BN
A\ ., . . . . . . . oXB ] Sl .. ] o / A\
\ ) Co . - S gV LOVHL . . .../nv, - o
o : . . .- g . . w
fh .
=
RV
L0 LI - .
v ?NQNW; . MW
g 10Vl P\
; &)

1 - T T T 009 o . )

| FOUINIHOTHE LV NOISAIGENS - SONVTHIIH FHL

SHNININOGNOD " SELNID FOTIY LIWANS . /

— om0 ho.ww..
LI S 0avHOT0D ULNNOD LANS - & oromrocssie

. N.wa\m\?m»\Q.wm\%K_\ VOVINT TV .Nbv@n_. n /
A L 05 AVIIALHTD NOULVIOT LININAOYM NY -~ S

= " . o

FIVOS OMHAVED




JOINDER OF LIENOR

The undersigned, beneficiary under the Deed of Trust dated , and recorded

, at Reception No. in the Office of the Clerk and Recorder of

Summit County, Colorado, as amended and supplemented from time to time (the “Deed of

Trust”), for itself and its successors and assigns, approves the foregoing Grant of Easements and

Covenants affecting the Burdened Property encumbered by the Deed of Trust, and agrees that no

foreclosure or other enforcement of any remedy pursuant to the Deed of Trust shall impair,
invalidate, supersede or otherwise affect this Grant of Easements and Covenants.

FIRSTBANK, a Colorado state banking

e K)EB' Corporation
:BBIE L NEELY
| o NOTARY PUBLIC
f 5 NTC;E OF COLORADO 7 C\
! My Commission poy 244017503 B araif?f;\%/j“«‘fggfg“”
([ MyC slon Explres Dacembey 6, 2022 Tz:le T J‘F — Tood Vi x_;“g ——t L
: A gkt corttl Vige SedGod gia T
Date: __4H4{eess.  d)islave

STATE OF COLORADO )

, . ) ss.
COUNTY OF ouion )
o M (
. . . 2
Thqyforeiomg instrument was ack?f)wledge\dab%fgrp me this \ > _day of A P \ , 2022,
by Dredeyn Memdlnas Cxedutive ece Fuadof Tioalloanl .

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 7
My commission expires: . /’/ . P e
S %f“ # ’ ) T -
S e
(/' #" Notary Public )
. // )
L~

11
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AUTHORIZATION TO ACT AS REPRESENTATIVE

BGV PARTNERS ENTRADA LLC, a Colorado limited liability company (together with its
affiliates, the “Owner”), owner of Tract A2 of the certain real property legally described on the attached
Exhibit A (the “Property”) hereby authorizes OTTEN JOHNSON ROBINSON NEFF & RAGONETT],
P.C., a Colorado professional corporation, to act as the Owner’s agent and representative in all matters
pertaining to the Owner’s applications to the Town of Breckenridge (the “Town”) for the annexation and
zoning of the Property (the “Applications”). This authorization will expire by its own terms upon the
successful approval of the Applications by the Town, or upon the written termination of this instrument by
the Owner.

OWNER:

BGV PARTNERS ENTRADA LLC, a Colorado limited liability
company

By: MW

Name: Micrwea DJOIC[(/

Title: fENA R

Date of Signature: £ /24 / 22
STATE OF _Colorad 0 )

) ) ss.
COUNTY OF _Sumnit- )
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 2 b day of F}un St

2022 by fidharl §, Dudicle  as Manm}e,f of BGV Partners Entrada LLC, a Colorado lumted
liability company.

Witness my hand and official seal.

My commission expires on: 4! A !é’ﬂ}l(

(SEAL) V&(/‘/f‘y W&g/tw

) 1c
AUBREE WAGNER Notary Publ
NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF COLORADO
Notary 1D #20224016306
My Commission Expires 4/22/2026

24743821
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EXHIBIT A
LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY

TRACT A2, ENTRADA AT BRECKENRIDGE, A REPLAT OF TRACTS Al, Bl & C,
ENTRADA AT BRECKENRIDGE, SUMMIT COUNTY, COLORADO ACCORDING TO THE
PLAT RECORDED UNDER RECEPTION NO. 1146781.

CONTAINING A TOTAL OF 61,655 SQUARE FEET OR 1.415 ACRES.

TRACT D, ENTRADA AT BRECKENRIDGE, A REPLAT OF TRACTS Al, Bl & C,
ENTRADA AT BRECKENRIDGE, SUMMIT COUNTY, COLORADO ACCORDING TO THE
PLAT RECORDED UNDER RECEPTION NO. 1146781.

CONTAINING A TOTAL OF 255 SQUARE FEET OR 0.006 ACRE.

A PORTION OF TRACT C, ENTRADA AT BRECKENRIDGE, A REPLAT OF TRACTS Al,
B1 & C, ENTRADA AT BRECKENRIDGE, SUMMIT COUNTY, COLORADO ACCORDING
TO THE PLAT RECORDED UNDER RECEPTION NO. 1146781, BEING MORE
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHEAST PROPERTY CORNER OF TRACT A2, ENTRADA AT
BRECKENRIDGE; THENCE S21°49'20"W A DISTANCE OF 14.17 FEET; THENCE
N77°04'50"W A DISTANCE OF 211.57 FEET; THENCE 25.30 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF
A CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A RADIUS OF 14.00 FEET, A CENTRAL ANGLE OF
103°32'57" AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS N51°08'42"E 22.00 FEET DISTANT; THENCE
S77°04'50"E A DISTANCE OF 149.62 FEET; THENCE 12.24 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF A
CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A RADIUS OF 62.00 FEET, A CENTRAL ANGLE OF
11°18'36". AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS S§71°25'32"E 12.22 FEET DISTANT; THENCE
S65°46'14"E A DISTANCE OF 19.70 FEET; THENCE 9.61 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF A
CURVE TO THE LEFT HAVING A RADIUS OF 48.00 FEET, A CENTRAL ANGLE OF
11°28'05" AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS S71°30'16"E 9.59 FEET DISTANT; THENCE
S77°04'50"E A DISTANCE OF 20.77 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, CONTAINING
4,047 SQUARE FEET, OR 0.093 ACRE MORE OR LESS.

A PORTION OF HURON ROAD, CO. RD. NO. 450, SUMMIT COUNTY, COLORADO,
BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHEAST PROPERTY CORNER OF TRACT A2, ENTRADA
AT BRECKENRIDGE; THENCE S21°49'20"W A DISTANCE OF 14.17 FEET TO THE POINT
OF BEGINNING; THENCE S21°4920"W A DISTANCE OF 43.73 FEET; THENCE
N77°04'50"W A DISTANCE OF 189.05 FEET; THENCE N18°50'53"W A DISTANCE OF 50.82
FEET; THENCE N77°04'50"W A DISTANCE OF 211.57 FEET TO THE POINT OF
BEGINNING, CONTAINING 8,891 SQUARE FEET OR 0.204 ACRE MORE OR LESS.

Exhibit A-1

2474382.1
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Memo “| |

To: Breckenridge Town Council Members
TOWN OF
From: Town Staff BRECKENRIDGE
Date: 9/21/2022
Subject: Public Projects Update

Watson Ave Roundabout

Schedule: Phase 3 of the roundabout construction, which includes the majority of the east side construction, is
scheduled to be completed this week. Asphalt will be paved on the east side and then northbound traffic will be
shifted to the far east lane and southbound traffic will be shifted to the far west lane. This new traffic
configuration will leave the two inside lanes of Park Ave open for construction of the medians and the center of
the roundabout. Two lanes of traffic on Park Ave will remain open during this phase and access to Watson Ave
from Park Ave will be restored.

Construction will continue until final completion in late October. Sidewalks on Park Avenue, between French
Street and Ski Hill Road, are closed and pedestrians have been detoured to the Blue River Rec Path.

Most of the center concrete apron has been completed and the shape of the roundabout can be seen with the center
circle in the middle and splitter islands at the ends.
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The exhibit above shows the layout of the next traffic phase. Vehicles will be shifted to the outside
lanes of Park Ave, while the inside lanes will be closed for construction of the medians.

Budget:

Project Funding
2022 P&T Fund $5,500,000
Supplemental Appropriation (Approved 4/12/22) $750,000

TOTAL: | $6,250,000

® Page 2
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Coyne Valley Road Culverts and Blue River Rebuild

Schedule: The river arch culvert and pedestrian underpass have been backfilled recently and can now be driven
over by construction vehicles (the road is still closed to the public). Recently, retaining walls were constructed,
grading work for the rec path is being completed, inlets were constructed, and the stone columns are being
constructed. Coyne Valley Road remains closed to traffic until project completion in late October.

Work continues on the river restoration project north of Coyne with construction of the river riffle/pool/glide
features, topsoil spreading on the overbanks, two additional temporary diversions for the river, and placement of
erosion control fabric. Water will be switched to additional new portions of the river this week, which may lead to
increased turbidity in the river. Seeding of the disturbed overbank areas will happen this fall and final
landscaping is scheduled for 2023.

The link below contains updated drone imagery and progress updates from the contractor, Naranjo Civil, for the
Coyne Valley portion of the work:

COYNE VALLEY RD IMPROVEMENTS — Naranjo Civil Constructors

ey

B

The new river and recently installed erosion mats can be seen in the foreground of the image above. Water will be
switched this week into the dry portions of the river seen in the background (closer to Coyne Valley Road).

Budget:
Project Funding
2022 Capital Fund -Culverts $3,500,000
2022 Capital Fund - River $4,500,000
2022 Supplemental Appropriation | $1,858,500
TOTAL: $9,858,500
® Page 3
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https://naranjocivil.com/coyne-valley-rd-improvements/

Goose Pasture Tarn Dam

Concrete placements at the dam continue for the stilling basin, walls, and the toe drain system. The dewatering
pumps are required to run continuously to maintain a lowered groundwater elevation the continued excavation
and drain system installation. There have been no additional impacts to private wells reported this season.
Concrete deliveries will continue utilizing both Lakeshore Loop and Wagon Rd.

This project began in 2021 and will be constructed over 3 seasons with completion in October 2023. There is no
recreational access to the Tarn during the construction. Public outreach for the project in ongoing through the
project website: https://www.townofbreckenridgegptd.com.

Sidewalk Masterplan- Warrior’s Mark Sidewalk Extension

This project has been delayed until 2023 and will be competitively bid to consider cost escalation across the
construction industry. The milled asphalt surface on Broken Lance was repaved and the site restored for winter.

Budget:

Project Funding
2022 P&T Fund $250,000
TOTAL: | $250,000

McCain Undergrounding

Xcel has completed the undergrounding work for their electric facilities and the Town’s contractor is completing
the fiber pulling in this area. Comcast has been delayed in the completion of their undergrounding work. Once
Comcast's work is complete, Xcel will remove the overhead poles and lines and complete the final restoration
work. The work is expected to be completed by November.

Budget: The Xcel undergrounding work is being funded through the Xcel 1% undergrounding tariff and the joint
trenching working is being funded through the CIP Undergrounding of Overhead Utilities project.

Project Funding
Capital Fund $ 100,000
Xcel 1% Funds $1,500,000
TOTAL: | $1,600,000
Fiber 9600

Schedule: Work on the Fiber 9600 project continues. This year, we have installed conduit and fiber from Valley
Brook Road north to Stan Miller Drive and the new development near Shores Lane. We are working diligently
to ensure the new housing developments at Alta Verde |, Alta Verde Il, and Block 11 will have fiber available
when residents move in. We are also pre-planning for fiber at the Justice Center housing development. We
have connected Town facilities including the Breckenridge Tennis Center and Carter Park Pavilion and will have
fiber to the North Water Treatment Plant this fall. Last week, Allo spliced the fiber from Valley Brook Road up to
Stan Miller Dr. This means that the neighborhoods at Valley Brook, Blue 52, CoTo Flats, and the businesses
along Airport Rd will be able to sign up for service drops.

In addition to the backbone lines and Town facilities, we continue to install fiber “drops” to residents and
businesses. To date in 2022, we have completed 76 drops. Areas where we are seeing residents sign up for
service include the downtown core, Wellington, Lincoln Park, Gibson Heights, and along Wellington Rd. We are
in the process of installing fiber at multi-dwelling units through Town. We have installed service at the French
Ridge Condos (24 units plus 4 businesses) and are wiring the Falcon Condos (12 units) this week. We will be
wiring other multi-dwelling units this fall including Weisshorn (7), Sky Park (14 units plus 7 businesses),

® Page 4
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https://www.townofbreckenridgegptd.com/

Edelweiss (30 units), and Alpenrose (18 units). We will be bringing fiber to the RWB North Fire Station in the
next week.

Residents and businesses can learn more and sign up for service by navigating to:
https://mwww.townofbreckenridge.com/live/town-projects-and-issues/breckenridge-broadband-project

We are working with Allo to develop a long-term strategy to ensure robust marketing and sign up in areas where
service is available and on how to bring fiber to more parts of Town. Areas of consideration for future expansion
include Ski Hill Road and the west side of town, South Breckenridge, Ice Rink, and Gary Roberts Water
Treatment Plant. We have submitted a Letter of Intent to apply for grant funding through the Colorado
Broadband Office and are looking at NTIA Middle Mile grants to help support these future construction

efforts. We continue to monitor other funding opportunities and will apply for grants when we qualify.

Budget:

Project Funding
2022 Capital Fund | $2,500,000
TOTAL: | $2,500,000

® Page 5
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https://www.townofbreckenridge.com/live/town-projects-and-issues/breckenridge-broadband-project
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TOWN OF

Memo BRECKENRIDGE
To: Breckenridge Town Council

From: Matt Hulsey and the Mobility Division

Date: 9/19/2022

Subject: South Gondola and EV Charging Information

On November 121, 2021 the South Gondola Parking Structure was opened to the public with 958 stalls, an
increase of 408 stalls over the lot it replaced. While the additional parking in the core of town is a win for our
community, the added vehicular traffic and pedestrian movement has created many learning opportunities for
town staff.

Background on South Gondola Lease Agreement with Vail Resorts —
¢ Vail Resorts is the Landlord and TOB is the lessee/tenant
e Expenses - Both parties split the majority on a 365 day period
¢ Revenue - There are two operating seasons in which revenue is divided

0 Ski Season — VRI receives 57.41% of revenue. This number reflects the original 550 parking
stalls of the dirt lot divided by the total stalls of 958 as the Parking Structure sits now

0 Summer - TOB receives 100% of revenue during the months outside of “Ski Season”

Statistics —
November 12, 2021 — April 30, 2022
e 48% daily average occupancy throughout winter season
e 32 days saw 900+ vehicles, considered fully parked
e Total Ski Season profitability was $669,726, with the TOB portion being $285,228 after expenses and VRI
share of 57.41% paid
May 1, 2022 — Current
e $140k total revenue, this is before operational expenses are removed
e Will update profitability number once summer expenses are completed in October
e May and October are “Local’'s Appreciation Month” offering free parking in town owned lots
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This chart shows winter only revenue, expenses and profitability:

Ground Lease between Vail Resorts and Town of Breckenridge
2021-2022 Lease Year

Nov-21 Dec-21 Jan-22 Feb-22 Mar-22 Apr-22 May-22 Total
Total Gross Receipts 48,336.41 256,887.70 346,602.22 308,168.26 327,075.91 88,901.13 3,940.00 1,379,911.63
Total Ground Lease Expenses 40,000.28 92,571.92 125,773.19 116,043.55 110,889.81 84,047.96 40,572.51 640,184.78
Maintenance Reserve Contribution 70,000.00

Ski Season Profitability $669,726.85
Landlord's Share (57.41%) $384,498.71

Total TOB Profitability $285,228.14

Observations and Comments taken directly from the 2021/22 Annual Parking Report:

e 15 min dropoff is difficult to find from the street and when entering surface lot. This has caused vehicles
to stop in areas where traffic congests quickly. We are looking to improve/simplify signage to help with
wayfinding. Changes mayinclude:

o Entrance — 15 min dropoff, flat rate day parking, restrooms, EV charging
0 Structure entrance — EV charging, restrooms, pedestrian exit

o0 Interior of structure — Restrooms, pedestrian exits, staylonger

o0 Exit— Recommended directions for fastest egress, staylonger

e Based on winter observations, pedestrians are not following developed walkwayswhen leaving the
structure and lot, instead they are following direct routes, including walking across the retention pond
and out the entrance drivelane.

0 Ingress is better thanegress.

o Staff will evaluate options to better direct pedestrians. Improvements may include additional
fencing and/or signage to keep pedestrians from crossing at the Entrance to the structure on
Watson where buses are entering and exiting the Transit Center.

e Between 9am and 10:30am on busy days, there is a steady backup of vehicles on to Park Ave. The
vehicles are then blocking transit from entering/exiting Breck Station.

e Average egress time between 3 and 5pm is 20 minutes from the 41 fioor on busy days when “No Right
Turn” signage is up and traffic control is present.

o Early in the opening of the structure, vehicles exiting on busy days without traffic control and
signage were taking upwards of 75 minutes from the 4" floor. staff implemented a prohibition
on right turns out of the structure lot and required vehicles to utilize Park Avenue as opposed to
Main Street. This resulted in a clear improvement in total egresstime.

o For next season, staff is recommending the installation of permanent “No Right Turn” signage.
Staff will then observe the impact of this signage with the new entrance/exit directly from Park
Avenue before moving forward with any additional changes.

0o We will look to add messaging in and around the structure to influencevehicles to stay parked
between 3 and 5pm to avoidtraffic.

e Additional restroom signage will be added on the upper floors and in the surface lot to direct visitors
to the parking structure restrooms as opposed to the Transit Centerrestrooms.
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Sessions

ELECTRIC VEHICLE(EV)CHARGING
The Town of Breckenridge continues to invest in and expand opportunities for public EV charging. In 2021, the
Town brought online an additional 22 EV charging ports inside the South Gondola Garage, bringing the total
number of publically available ports in Town to 44. The locations and pricing policies for the Town's EV
chargers are listed below:

Town Hall

2 Ports - Level Il

4 Hour Limit

$.20/kWh

$20/hr overstay fee after 4 hours

Recreation Center

8 Ports - Level I

4 Hour Limit

$.20/kWh

$20/hr overstay fee after 4 hours

Public Works

4 Ports - Level Il

4 Hour Limit

$.20/kWh

$20/hr overstay fee after 4 hours

Steven C. West Ice Arena

8 Ports - Level I

10 Hour Limit

$.20/kWh

$20/hr overstay fee after 10 hours

South Gondola Parking Garage
22 Ports - Level Il

No time limit

$0.20/kWh

Users must still pay the parking fee,
separate from charging.

The Town has seen continued growth in utilization of these EV charging stations. Between May 1, 2021 and
April 30, 2022, the Town’s EV chargers were used 4,291 times. That is an average of 11.7 charging sessions

per day.
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The Town Hall charger sees the highest percentage (31%) of charging sessions, followed closely by the
Parking Garage (24%), and then the Ice Rink (23%).

EV Charging Sessions By Location

5/1/2021 - 4/30/2022: 4,291 Total Sessions

Parking Garage® (22 plugs), 1045, 24%

Town Hall (2 Plugs), 1331, 31%

lee Rink (8 plugs), 981, 23%

Rec Center (8 Plugs), 783, 18%

Public Works (4 plugs), 151, 4%

*Note: Parking Garage opened on 11/12/2021, so was only active ~5.5 months of the total 12-month sample
period.

Observations and Comments:

e According to the Department of Energy, combined sales of EV/PHEYV vehicles nearly doubled
between 2020 and 2021. The Town added a Chevy Bolt EV to our own fleet in 2021, and it is
currently in use with our Streets & Parks Division.

e Across all of the Town-operatedchargers:

0 The average length of charging session was 2 hours and 20 minutes, with 1 hour and 53

minutes being the median.

0 The average cost to the user per charging session was $3.27, with the median
being $1.99.

0 Atotal of 46,838 kWh of energy was distributed.

0 The ChargePoint software estimates 37.1 MTCOZ2e avoided as a result. That is the
equivalent of the carbon sequestered by planting 613 tree seedlings, and letting them
grow for 10years.

e Currently the Town is working to install four new L2 charging ports at the Breckenridge Golf
Course and Nordic Center, as well as two new DCFC ports at the Breckenridge Police Station
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Memo TOWN OF

To: Town Council BRECKENRIDGE
From: Mobility Staff

Date: 9/19/2022

Subject: August Traffic Count Data

Summary

Traffic counts for the month of August saw their highest levels since 2019, at both the Eisenhower Tunnel and
Hwy 9/Tiger Rd counters. Gas prices have eased considerably from their highs earlier in the summer, as pent-up
travel demand from the pandemic continues to get resolved. Northbound traffic counts at Blue River trended down
slightly this month from previous years.

CDOT Eisenhower Tunnel, Average Daily Total Traffic Counts (EB & WB)

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

2022 | 35851 | 38394 | 38795 | 30636 | 29665 | 37365 | 41946 | 39936

2021 | 34470 | 35126 | 37618 | 31250 | 31204 | 39513 | 41774 | 35557 | 38799 | 32166 | 31015 | 34600

2020 | 37669 | 35303 | 23910 | 11390 | 21442 | 33539 | 40756 | 34938 | 36790 | 33901 | 26787 | 32224

2019 | 38244 | 36034 | 38436 | 31567 | 30318 | 37402 | 44100 | 41526 | 38335 | 33214 | 29141 | 34553

2018 | 36771 | 36596 | 38333 | 29045 | 29940 | 38818 | 43998 | 40649 | 38010 | 29761 | 30153 | 36008

2016 | 35197 | 33382 | 35297 | 27084 36027 | 41151 | 38756 | 36072 | 29803 | 27977 | 32406

2017 | 33269 | 36718 | 39162 | 31483 M 40217 | 44022 | 39719 | 35614 | 30216 | 29087 | 32690
27611

CDOT Hwy 9 & Tiger Rd, Average Daily Total Traffic Counts (NB & SB)

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

2022 | 25343 | 26314 | 25528 | 19385 | 17755 | 22419 | 25576 | 25157

2021 | 23613 | 23681 | 24455 | 19981 | 18729 | 23885 | 26569 | 24052 | 22303 | 19357 | 19779 | 23740

2020 | 26091 | 24334 | 16206 | 8459 | 12873 | 20096 | 25398 | 24184 | 23870 | 21272 | 18851 | 22557

2019 | 26864 | 25558 | 25043 | 19475 | 17420 | 19707 | 22715 | 25287 | 23769 | 18932 | 19522 | 23106

2018 | 24454 | 23112 | 23746 | 17638 | 16681 | 21491 | 25586 | 23805 | 21848 | 17993 | 19613 | 24572

2017 | 22314 | 22238 | 22640 | 16863 | 15739 | 20133 | 23872 | 22365 | 20694 | 17736 | 17914 | 22213

2016 | 20067 | 20166 | 19771 | 15583 | 15315 | 20234 | 24369 | 22538 | 21058 | 17606 | 17498 | 20596

Hwy 9/Blue River Town Hall, Average Daily Total Traffic Counts (Northbound Traffic Only)

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

2022 3055 3151 | 3068 2336 2290 3091 3728 3310

2021 3063 2942 2678 2447 2548 3549 4232 3554 3427 2777 2540 2834

2020 Data Missing 4169 3901 3855 3078 2522 3107
2019 2936 2300 N/A 2210 2327 3213 4040 3773 3427 Data Missing
2018 2966 2561 2995 2259 2389 3308 3961 3563 3366 2494 2605 3131

2017 2547 2650 2842 2219 N/A 3138 3816 3439 3145 2254 2420 2902
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TOWN OF
Memo BRECKENRIDGE
To: Breckenridge Town Council Members

From: Rick Holman, Town Manager

Date: 9/21/2022

Subject: Committee Reports

Breckenridge Social Equity Advisory Commission - August and September minutes attached

Committees* Representative Report Status
Summit Stage Advisory Board Matt Hulsey No Meeting/Report
Police Advisory Committee Chief Jim Baird No Meeting/Report
Recreation Advisory Committee Scott Reid No Meeting/Report
Transit and Parking Advisory Committee Matt Hulsey No Meeting/Report
Ligquor and Marijuana Licensing Authority Tara Olson No Meeting/Report
Breckenridge Social Equity Advisory Commission Shannon Haynes Included
Communications Brooke Attebery No Meeting/Report

*Note: Reports provided by the Mayor and Council Members are listed in the Council agenda.
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TOWN OF

BRECKENRIDGE

Breckenridge Social Equity Advisory Commission
August 15, 2022 7:30am
Striving for racial and social equity for all by removing barriers and
facilitating opportunities to thrive

Required Meeting Items (7:30-7:35am)

a. Call to Order, Roll Call
Present: Andrew Brottman, Jason Smith, Jordan Burns, Carol Saade, Silvia Vicuna, Laurie
Moroco, Joyce De La Torre, and Tahja Grier
Discussion/Approval of Agenda — No changes

c. Discussion/Approval of the Minutes — Motion: Carol Saade, Second: Jason Smith

Public Comment (Non-Agenda Items) (7:35-7:40am)
No public comment

Staff Summary/Discussion (7:40-8:00am)

Celebration of Diversity Observance Calendar & Pride Event

Pride Event:

- The commission discussing the need to find a way to welcome people for the LGBTQ+
community to Breckenridge. With regard to an event, there needs to be a partner willing
to do the majority of the legwork, but the commission would like to help support the
event and the BSEAC sub-group would like to be part of the planning. The commission
felt strongly that planning much include the LGBTQ+ community and the event should be
solely focused on the LGBTQ+ community and not diluted.

- Frisco annually hosts a Pride parade and partners with the Summit High School. The
Breckenridge event should not take away from the Frisco event. The events should be
complementary.

The commission discussed the celebration of diversity observance calendar

- Commission will provide further review of the calendar and highlight those that they
would like to focus on.

- Black History Month — Have a focus on Barney Ford and Rosa Parks; partner with Breck
History

- Consider hosting themed Coffee Talk type gatherings

- Commissioners would like to highlight the following observances:

February 1 — Barney Ford Day

February 4 — Rosa Parks Day

February 20 — World Day of Social Justice

July 26 — National Disability Independence Day

July 30 — International Day of Friendship

August 21 — Senior Citizen’s Day

December 10 — Human Rights Day

Black History Month (February)

Mental Health Month (May)

Hispanic Heritage Month (September)

O O0OO0OO0OO0OO0OO0OO0OOoOOo
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Vi.

Vil.

viil.

Mountain Dreamers — 0SO Outdoors with Javier Pineda (8:00-8:45am)
Upcoming Council Items (8:45-8:50am) — No questions or items for follow up
Upcoming Agenda Topics (8:50-8:55am)

Smart Team presentation (September)

Cycle Effect collaboration discussion (TBD)

Update from BCA and Breck History (TBD)

Other Matters (8:55-9:00am)

Adjournment
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TOWN OF

BRECKENRIDGE

Breckenridge Social Equity Advisory Commission
September 19, 2022 7:30am
Striving for racial and social equity for all by removing barriers and
facilitating opportunities to thrive

Required Meeting Items
a. Call to Order, Roll Call:
Present: Andrew Brottman, Jason Smith, Jordan Burns, Tahja Grier, Carol Saade, Silvia
Vicuna, Laurie Morocco
Absent: Joyce De La Torre
Discussion/Approval of Agenda
c. Discussion/Approval of the Minutes — Motion: Carol Saade, Second: Jason Smith

Public Comment (Non-Agenda Items)
No Public Comment

SMART Team Presentation & Discussion
Overview of the Summit County SMART program by Lt. Daric Gutzweiller
SMART Q&A forum @ https://smartinfo9.wixsite.com/smart

Staff Summary (8:15-8:20)

The commission currently has one vacant (Dick Carleton). The position was posted for
approximately three weeks, in English & Spanish. Nine (9) applications were received. Next
step is to pull together a small interview group and schedule initial interviews. Likely the first
week of October.

There is a state funded, free ASL option for events. Details can be found at
http://rascolorado.com.

Pride Event update: BTO is planning to hire Dean Nelson to organize the Breckenridge event
in a way that compliments the Frisco event, which he also coordinates.

Accessible Trail proposal: Open Space and Trails is proposing to renovate the existing Reiling
Dredge Trail (0.25mi) into an accessible trail. The trail terrain is naturally gentle and is there
for a good candidate. The goal is to upgrade and retrofit the existing trail infrastructure to
provide wheelchair access and parking to the Reiling Dredge (1%t interpretive platform area).
Necessary updates include: parking lot expansion and installation of recycling asphalt,
parking space striping, installation of an ADA parking space, pedestrian crossing signs, trail
entrance ramp with handrails, trail grading and crusher fine installation, and buck & rail
replacement.

They would like to start the project summer 2023. BOEC has been involved and help with
how the trail could be update.

Other possible accessible areas: Cucumber Gulch, Trollstigen trail
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Commission suggestions:

- Consider signage making it a slower zone, widen the trail for safer passing

- Suggest two ADA parking spaces

Commission supports the changes, as well as looking into other trails that could be modified

Banner Discussion:

Black History Month: Commission would like to move forward with portraits of historic

figures

- Need to determine how many unique banners do we need

- Commission would like to utilized Jean Pajot Smith for the banner design

- Create a sub-committee to work with Brooke Attebery on design finalization,
presentation to Council, and banner production details.

- Plan to present images to Town Council in November

Upcoming Council Items (8:20-8:25)
No questions
Develop a procedure or timeline for providing feedback

Upcoming Agenda Topics (8:25-8:30)

Update from BCA and Breck History (October/November)
Cycle Effect (TBD)

Photos (8:30-8:50)

Other Matters (8:50-9:00)
No other matters

Adjournment — Motion: Jason Smith, Second: Jordan Burns

September 27
Legislative Items

FAMLI Opt Out (2™ Reading Ordinance) — Recent State legislation (supported by a ballot

question), has created a Family and Medical Leave Insurance program. The legislation allows
municipalities to Opt Out of the program. Staff has recommended the Town Opt-out and
discussed this recommendation with Council. The first reading of the ordinance was approved by
Council on September 13™. The Town is taking employee comments and feedback, and there will
be a public hearing on the 27™.
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Amendment to Policy 4A - Mass Bonus (1% Reading Ordinance) — Council requested staff
consider policy changes related to mass bonuses for condominiums, hotels, inns and lodges. The
existing mass bonus policy allows for additional mass (up to 30%) for lobbies, common areas,
hallways, and amenity space. With the existing mass bonus a developer does not need to include
the density of those spaces (up to 30%) in the total density required for the facility.

Subdivision Code Update (1% Reading Ordinance) — Staff is working to revise the planning code
to clarify the connection between a Master Plan and the section of planning code related to
subdividing a property. The code has provisions related to way subdivision lines are drawn and
there can be conflict between a master plan drawing, a subdivision drawing, and planning staff
interpretation. As a result clarification is necessary.

Intergovernmental Agreement for The Loge (Resolution) — The Town and County recently
partnered to purchase The Loge hotel (formerly Wayside) on Tiger Road. The property has 38
small housing units that will be used to house employees. The Intergovernmental Agreement or
“IGA” will lay out the financial and operational requirements of the Town and County.

Entrada Sufficiency Resolution (Resolution) — The Entrada property, located on the northeast
corner at the intersection of Huron Road/CR450 and Hwy 9, is planned for a housing
development. The developer is requesting to annex the property in the Town and the sufficiency
resolution is one of the first steps in that process. The purpose is to ensure the annexation is
legally sufficient as there are legal requirements that must be met before a property can be
annexed. A request to annex is common when a property owner wants to connect to Town
water.

Planning/Discussion items —
Housing Division Rules & Regulations — Council will review Housing Rules and Regulations that provide
structure and process to housing requirements.

October 11 — Council Budget Retreat

At the Budget Retreat, which is more of an extension of a work session, Staff will present Council with the
2023 proposed budget. The majority of the meeting will be focused on budget review,; however, there
will be a short regular (night) meeting that will include the 2™ reading of the Amendment to the Mass
Bonus Policy 4A and the 2™ reading of the Subdivision Code Update.
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Executive Summary

August 31, 2022

transfer taxes.

This report covers the 8 months of 2022. August is largely reflective of July tax collections

Overall, we are approximately S12M over 2022 budgeted revenues in the Excise fund. Sales tax is currently $8.6M
over YTD budget, and $6.2M ahead of prior year. Accommodations tax is $1.4M over budget, and $.8M ahead
from last year. Real Estate Transfer Tax is $1.8M above budget, and $1.6M behind prior year.

See the Tax Basics section of these financial reports for more detail on the sales, accommodations, and real estate

Excise YTD Actual vs. Budget - by Source
$25,000,000
$20,000,000
HYTD Actual
$15,000,000
$10,000,000
$5,000,000 i YTD Budget
5'
SALES TAX ACCOM TAX RETT OTHER
YTD Actual Revenues - Excise OTHER
ACCOM TAX
13%
SALES TAX
71%
Prior YTD Prior Annual
YTD Actual YTD Budget % of Budget Annual Budget Actual Actual

SALES TAX S 23,250,573 S 14,604,164 159% S 29,805,800 | S 17,005,003 29,624,292

ACCOMMODATIONS TAX 4,243,013 2,748,138 154% 5,118,200 3,393,027 5,916,325

REAL ESTATE TRANSFER 4,618,893 2,761,510 167% 6,000,000 6,310,103 11,038,657

OTHER* 559,847 535,414 105% 972,065 628,579 818,191

TOTAL S 32,672,327 S 20,649,225 158% S 41,896,065 | S 27,336,712 47,397,466

* Other includes Franchise Fees (Telephone, Public Service and Cable), Cigarette Tax, and Investment Income
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2021 2021/2022  2021/2022 2022
Description YTD 2019 YTD 2020 YTD 2021 % of Total YTD 2022 $ Change % Change % of Total
Retail $98,200,383 $85,782,368 $122,766,254 25.57%  $139,568,549 $16,802,295 13.69% 24.50%
Weedtail $6,519,444 $6,081,143 $7,811,049 1.63% $6,807,586 ($1,003,463) -12.85% 1.20%
Restaurant / Bar $94,882,881 $67,390,610 $92,471,566 19.26% $120,156,344 $27,684,778 29.94% 21.09%
Short-Term Lodging $119,133,593 $103,650,918 $168,323,761 35.05%  $205,508,120 $37,184,359 22.09% 36.08%
Grocery / Liquor $42,103,686 $37,113,358 $44,818,925 9.33% $50,506,656 $5,687,731 12.69% 8.87%
Construction $28,586,385 $19,553,529 $22,723,720 4.73% $23,051,872 $328,153 1.44% 4.05%|
Utility $18,142,915 $20,480,838 $19,890,907 4.14% $22,386,037 $2,495,130 12.54% 3.93%
Other* $1,102,588 $794,640 $1,396,030 0.29% $1,623,028 $226,999 16.26% 0.28%
Total $408,671,876 $340,847,405 $480,202,211  100.00%  $569,608,192 $89,405,981 18.62%  100.00%)
* Other includes activities in Automobiles and Undefined Sales.
YD w. 2021 , YTD 2022
Construction Other* Construction Utility Other*

3%
0% Retail 0%

19% Retail

Grocery / 25%
Liquor
Weedtail 9%
-1%
Weedtail
1%
Short-Term
Short-Term

Lodging
41%

Restaurant /

Lodging Restaurant /

Bar
30% 36% Bar
21%
$250,000,000 1~
$200,000,000 1~
$150,000,000
s = YTD 2019
$100,000,000 HYTD 2020
$50,000,000 I ] HYTD 2021
HYTD 2022
S0
Retail Weedstail Restaurant/ Short-Term Grocery/  Construction Utility Other*
Bar Lodging Liquor

New Items of Note:

® Year to Date, net taxable sales are currently ahead of 2021 by 18.62%.

® For July YTD 2022, there were increases in Short Term Lodging (22.09%), Restaurant/Bar (37.93 %) and Retail (29.94 %), Grocery/Liquor (12.69 %),
Construction (1.44%), Utilities (12.54 %) and Weedtail decline (-12.85%) compared to July , 2021.

® July YTD 2022 is ahead of July YTD 2019 by 39.38%.

Historical Notes:

® Due to COVID-19, on March 16th, 2020 Town-Wide business closures/operating limitations went into effect. On November 22, 2020 indoor dining
closed due to Summit County entering level red on the State COVID 19 dial dashboard on November 20th. Restaurants started reopening for indoor
dining on December 18, 2020 through the five star certification program.

® By executive order, Town bag fees were waived for large grocers during the COVID-19 pandemic March 27, 2020 - September 9, 2020, and again
November 19, 2020 - April 28, 2021.

® Short Term Lodging taxes are generally remitted based on reservation date.

® In 2014, a new category was added to the Sales by Sector pages for the Weedtail sector. The category encompasses all legal marijuana sales,
regardless of medical or recreational designation.

® Asection on Disposable Bag Fees was added in 2014.

® A section on Short Term Rentals was added in 2018.

e Taxes collected from the customer by the vendor are remitted to the Town on the 20t of the following month.

e Quarterly taxes are reported in the last month of the period. For example, taxes collected in the first quarter of the year (January — March), are
included on the report for the period of March.

e Net Taxable Sales are continually updated as late tax returns are submitted to the Town of Breckenridge. Therefore, you may notice slight
changes in prior months, in addition to the reporting for the current month.

e "Other" sales relate to returns that have yet to be classified. Much of this category will be reclassified to other sectors as more information
becomes available.

93



Mar
Apr
May
June
Jul
Aug
Sep
Oct
Nov

Dec

June
Jul
Aug
Sep
Oct
Nov

Dec

Jan

May
June
Jul
Aug
Sep
Oct
Nov

Dec

% change % change

2019 2020 2021 2022 from PY from '19
Jan $82,322,443 $84,647,231 $79,027,068 $113,607,465 |  43.76%  38.00%
Feb $75,811,953 $81,727,947 $79,756,130 $111,336,201 | 39.60%|  46.86%
®2022|["Mar $95,183,824 $55,901,786 $100,233,862 $125529,232 | 25.24%|  31.88%
2021 |[ Apr $33,985,955 $11,891,222 $50,287,510 $56,472,257 | 12.30%|  66.16%
w2020 |[May $26,566,276 $13,321,865 $34,401,161 $34,385,905 -0.04%|  29.43%
Jun $41,035,140 $37,462,588 $58,727,895 $56,020,225 -4.61%  36.52%
m2019 Jul $53,766,284 $55,894,765 $77,768,586 $72,256,908 -7.09%|  34.39%
Aug $48,080,702 $54,137,170 $74,661,042 $0 n/a n/a
Sep $44,878,747 $53,785,618 $60,828,856 $0 n/a n/a
Oct $32,297,790 $46,505,125 $48,304,529 $0 n/a n/a
Nov $39,930,615 $41,158,646 $55,205,046 $0 n/a n/a
S0 $500,000,000 $1,000,000,000 Dec $93,943,271 $84,869,488 $124,710,534 $0 n/a n/a
Total $667,803,002 $621,303,453 $843,912,218 $560,608,192 | -32.50%|  -14.70%
% change % change

2019 2020 2021 2022 from PY from '19
Jan $19,871,790 $18,704,413 $18,659,018 $24,702,914]  32.39%]  24.31%
Feb $17,615,093 $18,428,306 $19,554,720 25,227,204 29.01%|  43.21%
= 2022 /My $21,866,144 $12,463,718 $26,559,423 $31,422,372  1831%|  43.70%
2021 || Apr $8,644,040 $2,659,894 $13,491,209 $14,756,457 9.38%|  70.71%
2020 | |LM2Y $6,425,038 $3,991,508 $8,941,564 $9,364,905 4.73%|  45.76%
Jun $10,881,396 $14,729,684 $17,216,478 $16,369,808]  -4.92%|  50.44%
m2019 || Jul $12,896,882 $14,804,753 518,343,840 $17,724,889)  -3.37%|  37.44%
Aug $12,111,504 $13,131,110 $24,791,996 50 n/a n/a
Sep $13,079,366 $14,256,300 $16,988,018 50 n/a n/a
Oct $8,235,448 $11,623,556 $11,929,791 50 n/a n/a
| Nov $11,095,206 $11,524,654 $15,357,855 50 n/a n/a
o $200,000,000  $400,000,000 Dec $25,915,844 $25,313,381 $32,624,752 50 n/a n/a
Total $168,637,751 $161,631,370 $224,458,665 $139,568,549 | -37.82%|  -17.24%
% change % change

2019 2020 2021 2022 from PY from '19
Jan $1,278,628 $1,266,253 $1,478,465 $1,300,691]  -5.94% 8.76%
Feb $1,143,834 $1,155,097 $1,204,638 $1,200570]  -031%  12.83%
2022 | "Mar $1,291,752 $975,890 $1,441,196 1,310,491  -9.07% 1.45%
2021 || Apr $682,583 $371,068 $942,276 $732,968]  -22.21% 7.38%
2020 |IM2Y $525,557 $398,677 $695,750 $499,512|  -2821%|  -4.96%
Jun $691,544 $730,655 $841,867 $670,484|  -2036%|  -3.05%
®2019 |[ Jul $905,548 $1,183,503 $1,116,858 $912,870|  -18.26% 0.81%
Aug $845,682 $1,189,922 $936,140 50 n/a n/a
Sep $658,693 $1,058,643 $802,336 50 n/a n/a
Oct $536,078 $961,909 $665,889 50 n/a n/a
Nov $605,820 $946,348 $737,780 50 n/a n/a
<0 410,000,000 $20,000,000 Dec $1,088,987 $1,344,482 $1,195,620 50 n/a n/a
Total $10,254,704 $11,582,448 $12,148,814 $6,807,586 |  -43.97%|  -33.61%
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Jan
Feb % change % change
Mar 2019 2020 2021 2022 from PY from '19
Apr Jan $19,257,344 $19,554,069 $13,927,771 $22,890,956) 64.35% 18.87%
May 2022 Feb $18,251,145 $19,373,160 $14,848,206, $24,245,733 63.29% 32.84%
Mar $20,276,191 $9,539,117 $17,448,896) $25,550,174) 46.43%, 26.01%
June 2021 |[ Apr $8,183,550 $569,772 $9,779,546 $12,074,134 23.46% 47.54%
Jul 2020 May $4,752,756 $1,080,838 45,855,175 $5,500,372 -6.06% 15.73%
Aug Jun $9,334,516 45,757,644 $11,939,566) $11,550,668 -3.26% 23.74%
Sep 2019 Jul $14,827,380 $11,516,010 $18,672,407 $18,344,308 -1.76% 23.72%
Aug $12,693,004 $11,328,814 $15,402,713 $0 n/a n/a
Oct Sep $10,012,989 9,740,884 $12,148,767 S0 n/a n/a
Nov Oct $6,463,032 $8,035,694 $8,802,853 $0 n/a n/a
Dec Nov $8,198,131 $5,875,167 $9,109,639 S0 n/a n/a
$100,000,000 $200,000,000 Dec $17,153,063 510,821,262 $20,385,358 $0 n/a n/a
Total $149,403,100 $113,192,431 $158,320,897 $120,156,344 24.11%|  -19.58%
Jan
Feb % change % change
Mar 2019 2020 2021 2022 from PY from '19
Apr Jan $26,972,450 $32,472,870 $32,089,902 $49,175,223 53.24% 82.32%
May 2022 Feb $24,828,849 $30,219,575 $30,990,441 $45,760,046 47.66% 84.30%
Mar $37,084,360 $17,521,668 $39,256,903 $50,238,197 27.97% 35.47%
June 2021 || Apr $6,084,075 $411,396 $15,026,329 $15,874,356 5.64%| 160.92%
Jul I May $3,269,759 $193,062 $8,983,180 $7,856,802|  -12.54%|  140.29%
Aug " 2020 Jun $8,616,999 $6,255,691 $16,171,040 $14,631,139 -9.52% 69.79%
Sep 2019 Jul $12,277,101 $16,576,656 $25,805,967 $21,972,358|  -14.86% 78.97%
| Aug $10,003,552 $16,660,637 $20,489,851 $0 n/a n/a
Oct | Sep $8,761,172 $16,460,520 $18,270,483 $0 n/a n/a
Nov | Oct $7,656,277 $14,549,116 $16,463,389 $0 n/a n/a
Dec | Nov $10,643,615 $12,473,022 $19,916,175 $0 n/a n/a
5'0 520010'00,000 $400,000,000 Dec $32,570,216 $29,486,210 $51,116,216 $0 n/a n/a
Total $188,768,425 $193,280,422 $294,579,875 $205,508,120 -30.24% 8.87%
Jan
Feb % change % change
Mar 2019 2020 2021 2022 from PY  from '19
Apr Jan $6,728,312 $6,999,424 $7,287,839 $8,170,578 12.11% 21.44%
Feb $6,986,584 $7,348,579 $7,698,418 $8,753,193 13.70% 25.29%
May m2022 || Mar $7,555,406 $6,076,156 $7,875,044 $9,019,659 14.53% 19.38%
June 2021 | L_Apr $4,143,198 $3,106,559 $5,116,542 $6,998,996 36.79% 68.93%
Jul May $5,770,430 $2,826,463 $3,756,571 $4,696,309 25.02%| -18.61%
Ave m2020 | [ Jun $4,477,840 $4,217,888 $5,487,526, $5,436,849 -0.92% 21.42%
m 2019 Jul $6,441,916 $6,538,290 $7,596,984 $7,431,072 -2.18% 15.35%
sep Aug $6,036,270 $6,845,312 $7,082,310 $0 n/a n/a
Oct Sep $4,599,869 $5,779,785 $5,595,731 $0 n/a n/a
Nov Oct $3,956,333 $5,367,622 $4,452,681 $0 n/a n/a
Dec Nov $3,980,326 $4,969,855 $4,209,254 $0 n/a n/a
550, ooo 00 $100000000 Dec $10,973,358 $11,429,551 $11,964,748 $0 n/a n/a
aa Total $71,649,842 $71,505,483 $78,123,650 $50,506,656 -35.35%|  -29.51%




Jan
Feb % change % change
Mar 2019 2020 2021 2022 from PY from '19
Apr Jan $4,621,912 $2,322,673 $2,068,745 $3,080,481 48.91%, -33.35%
Ma Feb $3,928,370 $2,026,803 $2,195,750 $2,321,443 5.72% -40.91%
v ® 2022 | [\ar $3,639,371 $3,270,922 $3,867,901 $3,601,750]  -6.88%|  -1.03%
June w2021 || Apr $3,600,032 $2,300,346 $2,801,202 $2,645,018 -5.58%| -26.53%
Jul w2020 May $3,832,448 $2,761,828 $3,686,232 $3,696,433 0.28% -3.55%
Aug Jun $4,747,463 $3,546,159 $4,674,055 $4,482,601 -4.10% -5.58%
Sep m 2019 Jul $4,216,791 $3,324,797 $3,429,834 $3,224,146 -6.00% -23.54%
Oct Aug $4,372,893 $2,892,678 $3,564,355 S0 n/a n/a
c Sep $5,279,778 $3,734,686 $3,949,388, S0 n/a n/a
Nov Oct $3,589,597 $3,636,815 $3,704,289 $0 n/a n/a
Dec Nov $3,210,703 $3,240,472 $3,262,427 S0 n/a n/a
%0 $50,000,000  $100,000,000 Dec $3,172,007 $2,914,899 $3,503,626, S0 n/a n/a
Total $48,211,363 $35,973,078 $40,707,805 $23,051,872 -43.37% -52.19%
Disposable Bag Fees
The Town adopted an ordinance April 9, 2013 (effective October 15, 2013) to discourage the use of disposable bags,
achieving a goal of the SustainableBreck Plan. The $.10 fee applies to most plastic and paper bags given out at retail and
grocery stores in Breckenridge. The program is intended to encourage the use of reusable bags and discourage the use
of disposable bags, thereby furthering the Town’s sustainability efforts. Revenues from the fee are used to provide
public information about the program and promote the use of reusable bags.
450,000
# of Disposable Bags Reported by Month 400,000
350,000
150,000 300,000
250,000
100,000
m2021 200,000
50,000 -2022 150,000
100,000
0 50,000
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec 2021 I 2022 I 0
46,082 | 23302 | -12564 [ 25005 [40081 [ o | o | o [ o [ o [ [ [Total] 325,701 | 409,066 |
Bag Fees Remitted by Month
Net of Retained Percentage*
$20,000
$10,000 m 2021
o ol ol ol o e B B B wm . . B .
Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

*Retailers are permitted to retain 50% of the fee (up to a maximum of $1000/month through October 31, 2014; changing to a
maximum of $100/month beginning November 1, 2014) in order to offset expenses incurred related to the program. The retained
percent may be used by the retail store to provide educational information to customers; provide required signage; train staff; alter
infrastructure; fee administration; develop/display informational signage; encourage the use of reusable bags or promote recycling
of disposable bags; and improve infrastructure to increase disposable bag recycling.
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New Items of Note:

2022 compared to 2021.

Jan % change
Feb 2019 2020 2021 2022 from PY
Mar Jan $13,874,223 $14,391,492 $14,199,954 $18,368,531 29.36%
Apr Feb $13,756,792 $14,745,693 $15,056,904 $19,692,872 30.79%
May m 2022 || _Mar $16,907,361 $7,692,066 $17,993,697 $21,965,512 22.07%
June Apr $5,471,956 $501,878 $7,753,188 $8,118,583 4.71%
ol 2021 |["May $2,941,690 $1,184,259 $4,246,996 $3,893,010 -8.33%
m2020|[ Jun $5,602,223 $5,548,860 $8,444,658 $7,519,332 -10.96%
Aug 2019 Jul $9,136,287 $9,567,236 $12,301,068 $11,731,446 -4.63%
Sep Aug $7,911,840 $9,131,152 $9,627,443 $0 n/a
Oct | Sep $6,382,978 $7,831,392 $8,036,337 $0 n/a
Nov | Oct $4,203,590 $6,910,089 $6,509,120 $0 n/a
Dec Nov $6,422,057 $6,666,990 $8,656,071 $0 n/a
$‘0 $100,0;J0,000 $200,000,000 Dec $16,471,644 $16,164,622 $21,269,388 S0 n/a
Total[ $109,082,641 | $100,335,729 [ $134,094,825 $91,289,286
% change
2019 2020 2021 2022 from PY
Jan $5,997,567 $4,312,921 $4,459,064 $6,334,383 42.06%
Feb $3,858,301 $3,682,613 $4,497,816 $5,534,332 23.04%
2022 Mar $4,958,783 $4,771,652 $8,565,726 $9,456,860 10.40%
Apr $3,172,084 $2,158,016 $5,738,021 $6,637,874 15.68%
2021 | May $3,483,348 $2,807,340 $4,694,569 $5,471,895 16.56%
m2020 || Jun $5,279,173 $9,180,825 $8,771,820 $8,850,477 0.90%
| 2019 Jul $3,760,595 $5,237,517 $6,042,772 $5,993,442 -0.82%
| Aug $4,199,665 $3,999,958 $15,164,552 $0 n/a
| Sep $6,696,388 $6,424,909 $8,951,681 $0 n/a
Oct $4,031,858 $4,713,467 $5,420,670 $0 n/a
Nov $4,673,149 $4,857,664 $6,701,784 $0 n/a
$6 &0, 060,000 $100,000,000 Dec $9,444,199 $9,146,789 $11,355,363 $0 n/a
Total|  $59,555,110 $61,293,670 $90,363,840 $48,279,262
June YTD Trending Retail Sales
m— N TOWN
—— / Retail
e Out of
Town
Retail
2019 2020 2021 2022

e Starting in March 2019, the Finance Department has split the Retail sector into two
categories, In-Town Retail sales and Out-of-Town Retail sales. In-Town Retail sales comprise
businesses that are in Town limits, the sector had an overall increase of 13.1% in 2022 as
compared to 2021. The Out-of-Town Retail Sales had a overall increase in sales of 16.7% for
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Real Estate Transfer Tax

New Items of Note:

® Revenue August YTD is ahead of the budget by $1.8M and below the prior year by .06M.

® Single Family Home sales account for the majority of the sales (32.64%), with condominium sales in the second position of highest
sales (23.06%) subject to the tax. Timeshare sales are higher YTD by 19.07% and Single Family sales are lower YTD by -45.01%.
Townhome activity is representing 8% of the activity.

® August YTD 2022 churn was 33.65% below July 2021 and 2.7% higher than July YTD 2022.

Continuing Items of Note:
® 2022 Real Estate Transfer Tax budget is based upon the monthly distribution for 2020.

o B Total RETT
Feb .

- 2019 2020 2021 2022 % change 2022 budget +/- Budget
M:
* | Jan|  $536,802 |  $439,913 $394,201 $328,719 -16.61% $336,750 -$8,031

m 2022

Aer - 22021 Feb|  $441,411| $494,762 $493,987 $512,843 3.82% $378,737 $134,106
vy [ Mar|  $454,470 | $437,025 $813,726 $551,693 -32.20% $334,539 $217,154
Jun h Apr|  $674,070 |  $296,555 $946,247 $627,842 -33.65% $227,011 $400,832
N - May|  $781,528 |  $158,327 $743,447 $851,657 14.56% $121,198 $730,459
u

h Jun|  $480,111 | $330,564 $1,052,494 $495,925 -52.88% $253,044 $242,881
A |
“ | ‘ Jull  $510,302 |  $417,437 $841,992 $765,641 -9.07% $319,545 $446,096
Sep _ Aug|  $784,245 | $1,032,915 $1,024,008 $484,573 -52.68% $790,689 -$306,116
oct — Sep|  $684,950 | $1,478,414 $1,027,878 $0 n/al  $1,131,715 n/a
Nov ’b Oct|  $561,093 | $1,051,151 $2,446,257 $0 n/a $804,648 n/a

’I Nov|  $604,298 |  $939,818 $579,469 $0 n/a $719,424 n/a
Dec

¥ . . . Dec| $653,338 | $761,211 $674,950 $0 n/a $582,701 n/a

$0 $1,000,000 $2,000,000 $3,000,000

Total| $7,166,618 | $7,838,092 $11,038,657 | $4,618,893 $6,000,000

by Category

ol Description 2021YTD 2022 YTD $ change % change % of Total
oo l Commercial $ 139,525 |$ 456,900 | $ 317,375 227.47% 9.89%
. »2022  |Condominium $ 1,754,828 |$ 1,065,250 | $ (689,579) -39.30% 23.06%
T”""““: Timeshare $ 891,932 | $ 1,061,990 | $ 170,058 19.07% 22.99%
s.ng.e;,m..yi s Single Family $ 2,741,543 |$ 1,507,531 | $ (1,234,011) -45.01% 32.64%
i R Townhome $ 630,896 | $ 377,980 | $ (252,916) -40.09% 8.18%
fimestare Vacant Land S 149,918 | $ 149,242 | $ (676) -0.45% 3.23%
condominum | Total $  6308643|$ 4618893 S (1,689,750 -26.78% 100.00% $0

YTD Churn Analysis
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TAXES DUE - SALES, ACCOMMODATIONS, AND MARIJUANA TAXES

Tax Due by Industry-YTD

2021 2021/2022  2021/2022 2022
Description YTD 2019 YTD 2020 YTD 2021 % of Total YTD 2022 $ Change % Change % of Total
Retail $4,350,277 $3,800,159 $5,438,545 19.77% $6,182,887 $744,342 13.69% 18.93%
Weedtail $712,575 $664,669 $853,748 3.10% $744,069 ($109,679) -12.85% 2.28%
Restaurant / Bar $4,203,312 $2,985,404 $4,096,490 14.89% $5,322,926 $1,226,436 29.94% 16.30%
Short-Term Lodging $9,328,160 $8,115,867 $13,179,750 47.92%  $16,091,286 $2,911,535 22.09% 49.26%
Grocery / Liquor $1,865,193 $1,644,122 $1,985,478 7.22% $2,237,445 $251,966 12.69% 6.85%
Construction $1,266,377 $866,221 $1,006,661 3.66% $1,021,198 $14,537 1.44% 3.13%
Utility $803,731 $907,301 $881,167 3.20% $991,701 $110,534 12.54% 3.04%)
Other* $48,845 $35,203 $61,844 0.22% $71,900 $10,056 16.26% 0.22%
Total $22,578,470  $19,018,946 $27,503,684 100.00%  $32,663,412  $5,159,728 18.76%  100.00%
* Other includes activities in Automobiles and Undefined Sales.

ity YTD 2021 Other* Construction Utility YTD 2022
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Items of Note:
e The general sales tax rate includes the 2.5% Town sales tax + 1.93% County sales tax distributed to the Town.

® The Short -Term Lodging sector includes an additional 3.4% accommodation tax.

e Weedtail includes an additional 5% marijuana tax (recreational and medical). The 1.5% distribution from the State is
also included in this category. While the State distribution is only due on recreational sales, the majority of weedtail
sales are recreational and the distribution has been applied to the entire sector.

e Report assumptions include: applying tax specific to a sector to the entire sector, as well as assuming the same tax
base across the State, County, and Town taxes due. As a result, the numbers indicated above are a rough picture of
taxes due to the Town and not an exact representation. Additionally, the data is representative of taxes due to the
Town and not necessarily taxes collected year to date.
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The Short Term Rental Basics
Complaints Made by Type
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Continuing Items of Note:

 Renewals of STR licenses started on 12/28/2021 with a final date to renew by 01/27/2022

« An ordinance implementing a new regulatory fee of $400 per bedroom came into effect on 12/28/2021

* An ordinance limiting the amount of active STR licenses to 2200 outside of the exempt properties wentinto effect 11/2/2021
* An ordinance separating the Town in 4 zones was voted 08/23/2022 to come into effect on 09/27/2022

* New licensing software Munirevs was implemented and went live as of October 2021

* VRBO began collecting and remitting Breckenridge sales and accommodations tax for hosts on January 1, 2020.
* Airbnb began collecting and remitting Breckenridge sales and accommodations tax for hosts on October 1, 2019.
* Airbnb sales fall into all management categories.

* The number to lodge a complaint against a short term rental is 970-423-5334.

« This report will be provided to Town Council on a monthly basis.

[

TowN oF
BRECKENRIDGE

2020 2021 2022

Complaint Type Ql Q2 Q3 Q4 Ql Q2 Q3 Q4 Ql Q2 Q3 Q4 Total Calls 01/2020-08/2022 Percentage
Noise 22 10 27 23 35 15 28 15 39 15 16 245 46%
Nuisance 16 45 27 17 11 2 4 2 4 2 133 25%
Parking 16 2 15 3 5 3 9 5 24 4 7 93 18%
Trash 3 4 19 1 5 0 4 7 7 4 2 56 11%
Total 57 61 88 44 56 20 45 29 74 25 28 527 100%

* "Nuisance" includes complaints not concerning Parking, Trash, or Noise.

Complaints by Type Complaints by Bedroom Count
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Breckenridge - Source DMX RAO

Room Nights
Occupied Room nghts m2019 m2020 m2021 w2022
2019 2020 2021 2022 60,000
January 49,948 48,246 45,733 46,576 4993552 139
February 47,850 49,813 49,935 49,887 e -
March 48,554 24,202 52,139 52,571 40,000 o
April 20,895 350 26,485 23,454 .
May 11,274 637 10,474 8,763 30,000 EART—27:429 o
June 25,696 14,696 27,425 25,328 20000
July 40,131 42,162 45,960 37,893 om0
August 34,515 38,623 34,953 33,341 10,000 10,47
September 23,973 28,205 28,132 |I “
October 17,516 26,959 18,569 ) %C\
November 22,132 22,574 19,304 & & @ &
December 44,693 43,650 42,586 ‘>°°° QQ@@‘) Oﬁé z«"é &
Total 387,177 340,117 401,695 277,813 ° & &
ADR
2019 2020 2021 2022 ADR
January $ 328 $ 340 $ 343 $ 416 m2019 ®=2020 m2021 m2022
February $ 329 $§ 361 S§ 355 § 447 $600 <507
March S 356 S 364 S 372 S 477
April $ 180 $ 173 ¢ 213 s 237 ™ i Y
May $ 134 $ 87 $ 158 $ 173 o
June S 182 §$ 169 S 216 S 223 T 388
July S 203 S 186 S 254 S 263 $300 s 52305
August $ 18 S 177 $ 222§ 203 sp sl s a0 s
September S 157 S 161 S 194 $200 18 $§%g§18 18 $12194 6160518
October $ 136 $ 152 $ 169 o i
November S 183 $ 199 $ 234 $100
December S 418 § 404 S 547 .
Total 5 233 5 B0 73 305 f@&:&@ &@ SR "ﬁi@@‘p g 00&10&‘&1@@5@ &
9/19/2022 S:\BTO\Occupancy Forecast - MTRiP\1000 Multiple Year Comparisons - 1000\2010 - PRESENT Breckenridge Ave Monthly Occupancy ADR Rooms 2019 - to date
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Memo
To: Town Council

From: Chris Kulick, AICP, Planning Manager

Date: September 21, 2022 (for meeting of September 27, 2022)

Subject: Worksession: Subdivision Lot Shape Code Update; PL-2022-0340

Staff has worked with the Town Attorney and Planning Commission to consider a policy
change related to the Subdivision Code. The change would allow greater flexibility in the
shape and dimensions of lots where 1) a vested master plan that displays conceptual lot
lines governs the land use of a parcel proposed for subdivision or 2) when an open space
parcel is created. (Emphasis Added). The Town Council previously held a worksession
on this topic at their September 13, 2022 meeting and requested that the allowance for
greater flexibility of lot shapes associated with a Master Plan only apply if the Master Plan
specifically featured an exhibit with anticipated lot lines. Based on Council’s direction,
staff has amended the relevant sections of the Subdivision and Development Code below
for consideration.

Proposed Amendment:
9-2-4-5: Lot Dimensions, Improvements And Configuration:

3. Ingeneral, side lot lines shall be at right angles or radial to curving street lines unless a
variation from this rule provides a better street plan or lot layout, when an open space parcel
is created, or the proposed subdivision is generally consistent with a vested master plan that
displays proposed lot lines. Substantially, radial shall mean at more than a 30° angle to the
street. Lots shall take the form of plain geometric shapes except where conditions existing
on the site, such as wetlands, steep hillsides, or other environmentally sensitive areas

warrant the use of non-linear lot shapes where-topegraphic-conditionsreguire-otherwisefor
environmentally—sensitive—development, when an open space parcel is created, or the

proposed subdivision is generally consistent with a vested master plan that displays
proposed lot lines. Flag lots or other irregular shapes proposed as a means of manipulating
the square footage of lots in developed areas shall not be permitted.

9-1-19-39A: Policy 39 (Absolute) Master Plan:

E. Application: An application for approval of a master plan shall be classified as a class
A development permit application, and shall be submitted on a form provided by the
director. Such application shall be signed by all of the record owners of the property
proposed to be included within the master plan; provided, that an agent having a valid
power of attorney may sign such application for any such owner. The application shall
include the following information:

1. A boundary survey and legal description;

2. Proposed use(s), such as office, commercial, residential, lodging or service commercial;
3. Proposed ranges of density and intensity of use(s);

102



4. Proposed locations of major transportation and pedestrian circulation elements and
facilities;

5. Proposed amenities, such as parks, trails, open space, recreational facilities and common
elements;

6. Proposed locations for major public and quasi-public facilities;

7. Proposed conceptual subdivision lot lines;

8. 7. Required major extensions of utilities;

9. 8—A statement of the desired development concept, and design and architectural intent
for the proposed development, including:..

Town Council Discussion:
Staff would like to hear any questions, comments or concerns from the Town Council at
this time on the proposed modification.

Staff will be available at the worksession to answer any questions.

® Page 2
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